Rivera (Holdings) Limited

i

Tomson Group J” ‘?EJ % @ ﬁ lga /A.\ ﬁ

281

Stock Code %17 H55%:

/ / /ﬁ/

A :
e fﬁiﬁeﬁﬂmll.

\AS Ak

./,.4
s

.aﬂ

o
—_—

2015 ==

Annual Report




Corporate Information

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Profile of the Directors and Officers

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule of Principal Properties

Five-Year Financial Summary

>
il
-y
3

mf
e
R]
ik
=l
£
XA
P
=h

>
e
Jul:
oK
S
ofy

EERBMITHRABEN

EERBEE

BB RES

o
B
&
34

JF
o
N
K
it
fein
S

ARA SRR M A

TEMER

TFHHRE

Contents
=k

Page
B A

16
30
35
52
54

55

56
57
59
61
115

119



Corporate Information
INIETE

DIRECTORS

Non-Executive Chairman
Ge Peijian

Executive Directors
Hsu Feng

Albert Tong

Wang Fahua

Fan Suxia

Non-Executive Director
Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Liang Jung-chi
Zhang Hong Bin
Sit Hing Kwok

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lee Yuen Han

REGISTERED OFFICE
Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12
15th Floor

Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2845-6618
Facsimile:  2845-5557

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

/ RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | SO Sk B BRR A S)

S

FHEHITERE
1562

HTES
%
BT
e

FHITES
RME

BYHEHITES
=%/}
[

REWE

2 50 48

R Y
&5

TR 1115
KRR 518
1501-2%1507-12=

T L 2845-6618
BE: 2845-5557

BB ED
B 5 BT & 1T



SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2980-1333

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

SOLICITORS

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
David Lo & Partners

SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 281

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please email to ir@rivera.com.hk or
write to the Company’s registered office

Website: http://www.rivera.com.hk

Corporate Information
NSy

BROBFELE
SEREBHERAA

BB

EfFKNEFR1835:
AR L2221

i

2980-1333

FEFREIT

= HRIT(BE)BRAA
FEIRTT (BAB)BERRAA]

B TERTT (G2M) BRAF
EERRERRBITRNODAR QA
BERRITIRD AR R A
FRIBITRD AR R A
FEIRTT (BB ) AR A A

(EA:T]

REBIEREEI =BT
7= B B 2 B

g )

AR R Z AR
BERABARXZMARABER LM

PSR 281

REEBRE

BBEEZ ir@rivera.com.hk %

BOK AR R R 2 G B

@k

http://www.rivera.com.hk

Annual Report 2015 FEFR 2



Management Discussion and Analysis
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to announce the consolidated annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2015 and report a
consolidated profit after taxation attributable to shareholders
of the Company of approximately HK$174.13 million (2014:
HK$192.58 million) and a basic earnings per share of 6.68
HK cents (2014: 7.38 HK cents).

The profit of the Group for the year 2015 was mainly
attributable to a share of the results of an associate of the
Group. The associate is engaged in property development
and investment in Shanghai and the Group shared from the
associate a profit of approximately HK$141.31 million (2014:
HK$143.60 million).

Furthermore, the Group received a dividend income
of approximately HK$19.12 million (2014: HK$20.86
million) from its long-term securities investment in Hong
Kong and recorded a net gain in its trading securities
investments in Hong Kong of approximately HK$13.28
million (2014: HK$33.79 million) during the year under
review. Notwithstanding an increase in the realized gain
generated from the disposal of the Group’s trading securities
investments, the net gain in trading securities investments
was reduced in the year 2015 as a substantial unrealized
loss on changes in fair value of the Group’s trading securities
investments was recorded due to the negative impact from
the overall decline in stock market prices.

In addition, an interest income of approximately HK$18.83
million (2014: HK$13.53 million) was recorded for the year
2015 which was mainly attributable to the Group’s substantial
amount of cash balance in Renminbi. However, an exchange
loss (mainly unrealized) of approximately HK$14.31 million
(2014: HK$0.09 million) had arisen from depreciation of
Renminbi during the second half of 2015.

As a result, there was a drop of approximately 9.58% in the
consolidated profit after tax attributable to the shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2015 as
compared with that for the corresponding period in 2014.

As at 31st December, 2015, the equity attributable to
the shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$2,232.10 million (2014: HK$2,183.27 million) in total and
approximately HK$0.86 (2014: HK$0.84) per share.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31st December, 2015
(2014: HK$0.02 per share). The final dividend would be
payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 31st May,
2016 at 4:30 p.m. subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Dividend warrants are expected to be dispatched on Friday,

10th June, 2016.

Shanghai Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port Co. Lid.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Rivera (Holdings) Limited
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LERIMEFRBARAE

Zhangjiang
Tomson Garden
RISES

Shanghai Chuan Qi
(Commercial Centre)

LiBE%H
(AxXES)

Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port

Residential-cum-Commercial
Development in
Fengxian District, Shanghai
EtBTEEBEZ

FERBXEERER

(Shanghai Boulevard
Real Estate Co., Limited)

LERREEXERRLQF

Car Parking Spaces of
Tomson Beautiful Space
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment were the principal activities of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2015.

Securities trading and investment contributed approximately
99.51% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group
for the year 2015. Though an unrealized loss on changes
in fair value of its trading securities was recorded as at the
year-end date in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Group realized a gross profit from securities
trading and received dividends from both trading and long-
term securities investments during the year under review. As
a result, a segment profit of approximately HK$30.71 million
(2014: HK$54.26 million) was generated for the year 2015
principally from sale of trading securities.

Property development and investment undertaken by the
Group's subsidiaries accounted for the remaining approximately
0.49% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations for the
year ended 31st December, 2015. There was a substantial
decrease in the segment revenue for the year under review
as the revenue was only derived from sale and leasing of car
parking spaces in Shanghai, whereas in 2014, there was also a
one-off recognition of sale proceeds of a residential property in
Macau. As a result, a segment loss of approximately HK$2.07
million (2014: profit of approximately HK$9.42 million) was
recorded for the year 2015.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd., an
associate of the Group engaged in property development
and investment in Shanghai, was the principal source of profit
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2015 and
contributed a significant profit of approximately HK$141.31
million (2014: HK$143.60 million) to the Group for the year
under review.
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Property Development and Investment

Apart from the property development and investment
business in Shanghai, the Group holds an investment
property and a few properties for sale in Macau. No revenue
was generated from the property portfolio in Macau during
the year under review.

LBREBEXERAT
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited (“Boulevard
Real Estate”), a 93.53%-owned subsidiary of the Company,
holds three hundred-plus car parking spaces in its sole
residential development, namely Tomson Beautiful Space,
in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
(“Zhangjiang Park”). For the year ended 31st December,
2015, operating revenue of Boulevard Real Estate was
derived solely from sale and leasing of the said car parking
spaces, which accounted for approximately 0.49% of the
Group's gross proceeds from operations of the Group.
Boulevard Real Estate generated a profit before taxation of
approximately HK$9.75 million for the year under review after
taking into account its interest income.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
("SZMP”™), in which the Group holds a 37% interest in the
registered capital, is principally engaged in residential, office
and commercial property development and investment in
Shanghai. SZMP derived its revenue for the year 2015 solely
in Zhangjiang Park and mainly from property leasing. Since
the residential development project in Fengxian District,
Shanghai is scheduled for delivery to its buyers in the fourth
quarter of the year 2016, the pre-sale proceeds of such
project could not be recognized in the annual results for
2015. As a result, for the year ended 31st December, 2015,
SZMP reported a profit of approximately HK$381.91 million
and the Group shared a profit of approximately HK$141.31
million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Zhangjiang
Tomson Garden
RISEZE

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

SZMP has completed a residential development project in
Zhangjiang Park, namely Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, in four
phases. All residential units earmarked for sale have been
sold out.

This project was the principal source of revenue of SZMP
for the year under review and accounted for approximately
51% of the turnover of SZMP. SZMP retains residential gross
floor area of approximately 65,400 square meters for leasing
and holds one thousand-plus car parking spaces for sale.
All the residential rentable rooms were leased out as at 31st
December, 2015 and SZMP recognized satisfactory sale
proceeds from sale of car parking spaces for the year under
review.
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Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port

SZMP retains 7 blocks of office buildings in Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port situated in Zhangjiang Park for leasing
purpose. As at 31st December, 2015, the total rentable
gross floor area for commercial and office purposes of
approximately 90,200 square meters were fully let out,
contributing approximately 40% of the turnover of SZMP for
the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis
SR 251N i
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Shanghai Chuan Qi

Shanghai Chuan Qi, the commercial centre, provides total
gross floor area of approximately 26,300 square meters for
leasing purpose and an occupancy rate of approximately
86% was recorded as at 31st December, 2015. The income
generated from the commercial centre accounted for
approximately 9% of the turnover of SZMP for the year under
review. Food and beverage outlets are the major tenants
of the commercial centre, occupying approximately 61%
of the leased area while entertainment businesses rank as
the secondary tenants, taking up approximately 29% of the
leased area.

In addition, SZMP possesses a land bank with a site area
of around 15,000 square meters in Zhangjiang Park for
development of Phase 2 of the commercial centre.

/;%//mwmummm%nmmmMﬂ%Eﬁm@a

LEEE

BERES - L8ETRHLEEMAEL26,300
TR AEHERR RZZE—HFE+ A
=+ —BZHBAXRYBE86% %52 W
MNMEMBEFARRINEIEEFE 2 LEFELI% o
ZRBZHEPUNREEREAT (hEHER
EH61% MRSEERIE_REEMFE 14
EHEmMEH29% °

N HMEFEARRKIEREAEE — 81
BEFEAI15,000F 5K 2 L& AMEAR
¥EBFE_HBER A




Management Discussion and Analysis
SR 251K i

Development in Fengxian District, Shanghai WREETFEEZZREER

SZMP is developing a residential-cum-commercial project on MEFABRAERELEMEER 2 — BT
a plot of land in Fengxian District of Shanghai. The project MAE—EEEREEERIEES - %ZEEB 81520
comprises 20 blocks of apartment buildings of eleven Et+t—EBz2_t+-—EBasc BEE —ETE
to twenty-one storeys, a block of commercial-cum-office SZEARAKRE W TEESREERE %
building of ten storeys, underground car parks and ancillary ENBEEENERARAKREDEBHIE EHE

buildings. Superstructure construction of the apartment ETEIREET -BHZBERSR-_Z—RX
buildings and commercial-cum-office building has been FEENETHNER-

completed and overall outdoor construction is in progress. It
is expected that the project will be ready for delivery to the
buyers in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Commercial-cum-office Building

[k
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The residential project is named Tomson Ginkgo Garden
and there are approximately 1,240 residential units with total
saleable gross floor area of approximately 145,000 square
meters. Up to the end of the year under review, SZMP has
launched 679 residential units with total saleable gross floor
area of approximately 80,900 square meters in two phases
for pre-sale of which approximately 61% were contracted for
sale. It is expected to launch the third phase of residential
units for pre-sale in the second quarter of 2016.

The commercial-cum-office building with total gross floor
area of approximately 11,000 square meters is retained for
leasing.

Securities Trading and Investment

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong
Kong for trading and long-term investment purposes.
Securities trading and investment was the principal source of
both gross proceeds from operations and operating profit of
the Group for the year under review.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, revenue
derived from the securities investments held for trading
amounted to approximately HK$380.11 million and this
accounted for approximately 94.75% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations. The revenue was attributable
to proceeds from disposal of approximately HK$372.55
million and dividend receipts of approximately HK$7.56
million. As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had securities
investments held for trading of an aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$433.44 million and an analysis by industry
classification is set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 106. After taking account of
an unrealized loss on changes in fair value of the trading
securities of approximately HK$47.50 million in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards owing to the overall
decline in stock market prices, a net gain in trading securities
investments of approximately HK$13.28 million was recorded
for the year under review.
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As at 31st December, 2015, the Group held an approximately
11.456% interest in the total issued capital of Tomson Group
Limited (“TGL"), a listed company in Hong Kong and one of
the well-known property developers in Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, as a long-term investment and the fair value of
such investment amounted to approximately HK$334.88
million. The Group received an interim dividend from TGL for
2014 of approximately HK$19.12 million, which accounted
for approximately 4.76% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations for the year under review. However, an unrealized
loss on change in fair value of the securities investment
in TGL of approximately HK$21.51 million was charged
to the investment revaluation reserve of the Group as at
31st December, 2015 in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financing and Profitability

There was no change in the Group’s capital structure during
the year ended 31st December, 2015 and the Group's
operations and investments for the year under review
were mainly funded by its cash on hand and revenue from
investing activities.

As at 31st December, 2015, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$697.40 million.
During the year under review, the Group recorded a net cash
outflow of approximately HK$268.03 million for its operating
activities and generated a net cash inflow of approximately
HK$358.14 million from its investing activities. After taking
into account dividend payment of approximately HK$62.35
million by the Group, the net cash inflow of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$27.76 million (2014: net cash outflow of approximately
HK$68.31 million). The increase in cash balance in 2015 was
mainly attributable to a receipt of dividend from SZMP, an
associate of the Group.

The Group had no borrowing as at the end of the reporting
period (2014: Nil). Of the liabilities of the Group, approximately
73.37% were due for repayment within one year from the
end of the reporting period while the balance was deferred
tax liabilities related to undistributed earnings of SZMP, the
Group’s associate.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment in respect
of expenditure on property development which had been
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements for
2015 (2014: Nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31st December, 2015, the Group recorded a current
ratio of 9.05 times (2014 7.16 times) and a gearing ratio (total
liabilities to equity attributable to owners of the Company) of
7.92% (2014: 9.60%). The improvement in current ratio was
mainly attributable to the receipt of dividend from SZMP, an
associate of the Group, while the drop in gearing ratio was
mainly attributable to the drop in tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities.

For the year under review, the Group reported a return on
equity (net profit to the average equity attributable to owners
of the Company) of 7.91% (2014: 8.92%). The drop in the
return on equity was mainly attributable to an unrealized loss
on changes in fair value of the Group’s securities investments
and an exchange loss (mainly unrealized).

Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31st
December, 2015 (2014: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered
by the assets. The depreciation in value of Renminbi may
have an adverse effect on the Group’s results and net asset
value in the short run. Nevertheless, all of the other assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either Hong
Kong Dollar or Macau Pataca. Hence, the Group anticipates
that the exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st December,
2015 (2014: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operation results and
business prospects may be directly or indirectly affected
by a number of risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, financial risk and changes of local
laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
Information on the estimation uncertainty, capital risk
management and financial risk management is respectively
set out in Notes 4, 5 and 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year under review on pages
81 to 87.
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There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those stated above which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

PROSPECTS

The Group will keep property development and investment
as well as securities trading and investment as its principal
operating activities.

Residential properties for the middle-class and commercial-
cum-office properties in the Mainland are the target business
segments of the Group. It is anticipated that the property
development and investment business of SZMP, the Group’s
associate, will remain the major profit contributor of the Group
in 2016. Apart from the projects in Zhangjiang Park, Tomson
Ginkgo Garden, the residential project of SZMP in Fengxian
District of Shanghai, is expected to become a significant
source of revenue for SZMP upon delivery to the buyers in the
fourth quarter of 2016.

It is expected that the global and Hong Kong financial
markets will remain relatively volatile in 2016. The
management will closely monitor the market conditions and
will remain cautious in managing the Group’s securities
trading and investment portfolio so as to maximize its return
to the shareholders. The Group will seek out appropriate
opportunities to expand its investment in the property
sector and will also aim at investment in high-yield listed
securities for stable recurrent income and long-term capital
appreciation.

In addition, the Macau government announced in December
2013 revised planning directives under the “Urban
redevelopment programme of the Northern District of Taipa
Area” which covers the area in which the investment property
of the Group is located. The Group will continue to explore
and evaluate various feasibility plans for its investment
property to realize its development potential at an opportune
time.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged less than 10 full-time employees in its
various offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Shanghai as at
31st December, 2015. The total emoluments of the Group for
the year under review amounted to approximately HK$2.99
million including retirement benefits scheme contributions
and directors’ emoluments. In addition, the Group shared
administrative resources with a core connected person in
Hong Kong on a cost basis and details are shown in Note
24(b) to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year under review on page 108.

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a
highly-efficient staff management and incentive structure.
Emoluments paid to salaried staff and directors of the Group
are determined by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance. Furthermore, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group are eligible for options
that may be granted to subscribe for shares of the Company
as a long-term incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express
its gratitude to all the staff members of the Group for their
devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Ge Peijian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures which emphasize management
of high quality, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and complied with the code provisions contained
therein during the year 2015 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report for 2015, except that:

(a) in contrast to Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the
non-executive Directors (whether independent or not)
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term.
However, they are subject to retirement and re-election
at least once every three years at annual general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company;

(b) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director of the Company appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company instead of being subject to election at
the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment as stipulated in Code Provision A.4.2 of
the Code. Such arrangement not only complies with
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but also streamlines
the mechanism of re-election of Directors so that both
new Directors appointed by the Board (either for filling
a casual vacancy or as an additional member) and
existing Directors retiring by rotation shall be subject to
re-election at the annual general meeting for the relevant
year. Furthermore, general meetings other than annual
general meetings will be reserved for considering and
approving notifiable/connected transactions or other
corporate actions under the Listing Rules only, which
should enhance efficiency in procedures for corporate
matters;
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(c) the Company has not established a nomination
committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Code Provision
A.5.1 of the Code. This is because when identifying
individuals of appropriate calibre and qualification to be
Board members and when assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, it is necessary
to have a thorough understanding of the structure,
business strategy and daily operation of the Company.
The participation of executive Directors during the
process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the
Board as a whole remains responsible for reviewing its
own structure, size and composition annually, and also
for considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors as well as assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and

(d) though the Company Secretary is not an employee of
the Company as stipulated in Code Provision F.1.1 of
the Code, the incumbent has day-to-day involvement
and knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Company
secretarial services are provided to the Company
by sharing of administrative services with its core
connected person on a cost basis.

THE BOARD

The Board is now composed of nine members, including
a non-executive Chairman, Mr Ge Peijian; four executive
Directors, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua
and Madam Fan Suxia; one non-executive Director, Mr Sung
Tze-Chun; and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing
Kwok. All the Directors have signed letters of appointment
with the Company which set out the key terms and conditions
of their appointment. Biographical details of the Directors
and relevant relationships among them together with their
respective roles in the Board and its committees are set out in
the Profile of the Directors and Officers on pages 30 to 34.
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The Company recognizes that a diverse Board is crucial to
the Board’s performance and development of the Company.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
It believes that diversity should be viewed from its widest
sense. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is
based on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the Board structure and composition at one of its
regular meetings. With the Board members coming from a
variety of business and professional background and two
out of the nine Board members being female, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a diverse mix of skKills,
experience and expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business
and development. More than a half of the Board members are
non-executive and it is considered that there is a balanced
structure and composition of the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represent one-third of the Board and one of them has
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual written confirmation for the year 2015 from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when
required. All Directors are consulted as to whether to include
any matters in the agenda. Sufficient notices are given to all
Directors at least 14 days before the regular Board meetings
and agenda together with accompanying board papers are
given to all Directors in a timely manner before the date of
meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated
to the Directors for comment and record respectively.
During the year 2015, four regular meetings were held by
the Board. Besides, the non-executive Chairman of the
Board had an annual interchange in 2015 with all the non-
executive Directors (including all the independent ones) of
the Company without the other executive Directors present.

The Board will always act in the best interests of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and
the shareholders. It is accountable to the shareholders for
the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into
consideration the interests of other stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering formation of
corporate strategy, approval of annual and interim results,
changes of members of the Board and its committees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters.
The non-executive Directors have contributed valuable
independent views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation
and decisions. The Board has established an executive
committee, an audit committee and a remuneration
committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clear written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s
responsibilities. The Committees have to report regularly to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the management, who
provides support to the Board in the setting of overall
strategic direction, long-term objectives and business plans
of the Group. Both the Board and the management have
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The
management is responsible for implementing the strategies
and plans adopted by the Board and the Committees and
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of
the Group.

All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance,
financial position and prospects. The Board has agreed on
procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense, to assist them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

The Directors of the Company had disclosed to the Company
the offices held in other public companies or organisations
and the time involved and the Company had received
confirmations from each Director that he/she had devoted
sufficient time to perform his/her responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and had given sufficient attention to the
affairs of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an
orderly and effective operational system, which will enhance
operational efficiencies, thereby bolstering shareholders’
value. The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions. During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the
Board has discharged the following corporate governance
duties:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, including revising
the terms of reference of the audit committee of the
Board;

arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review
and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, details of which are set
out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Induction and
Continuous Professional Development” in this Report;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, including reviewing and revising the
provisions of the codes on internal control of the Group;

review and monitor code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and the relevant
employees (the “Code of Practice for Securities
Transactions”) and guidelines on raising concerns
about improprieties, and revise the Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions and the said guidelines; and

review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions of the Code and relevant disclosure in interim
and annual reports.

Corporate Governance Report
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Executive Committee

The Company has not appointed a chief executive but
the Board has established an executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) with written terms of reference
since August 2005. The Chairman of the Board from time
to time was not a member of the Executive Committee
except that the Chairman of the Board for the time being
acted as a member of the Executive Committee during the
period from 20th March, 2015 to 28th May, 2015. There is a
segregation of duties between the Chairman of the Board for
leadership and management of the Board and the Executive
Committee for dealing with the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business.

The Executive Committee is now composed of four executive
Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr
Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua and Madam Fan Suxia. Madam
Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive Committee.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board in March 2012 with specific
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company's
website. Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr
Sit Hing Kwok, being all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, and Mr Sung Tze-Chun, a non-
executive Director of the Company, are members of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr Sit Hing Kwok is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management’'s remuneration, to
determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors of the Company. The remuneration
of any member of the Remuneration Committee shall be
determined by the Board.

A Remuneration Committee’s meeting was held during 2015
for an annual review of the remuneration policy and packages
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company.
Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2015 are set out in Note 12(a) to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 96 and 97.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED J I SO 5. B BEBR S

HITEES

ARRTERZETRER HEEREA T
TRhENFRKZ—EEBASEAT Az B
HBEZHITEES ([MTREE]) BN =T
—EF=A-+HEZE-RAFHA=-+N\HRH
HE ERETZEEREIFEANTZES
ZREI AREEZEEREELIFNTE
BEZKEB - ESREIFMAUTZEEGZHE
EEERY) EERTIFENEEAEREERE
=R MBUTZEGRAEEEARBZARE
X5 EE-

HITZEERAARFRTEEFRAL L
BFRRE  BAERERBREL T MM
Ko RAITEEENEIFE -

FMEES

EERR-_T—-F=ZAKYT—ERAHZ
HRAZBERE FHNEEe ([FMEE
) - HNZEE s BESEEDHIINAL
B2t £ NRARRRBIFMITES IR
REXLE BREEERBEEE L UM
HITEEROEBEERFNEE G ZKE - 8F
HEEERFMEEE IR -FMEEE L
TERESREZTREREEABN BTN
HELRE AEEFRRLEZR ABITAR
AENRTEEREREEABNHMNGTE
ARARBIFFATEZNHMN RAEZHIE
HEZZ - FMEESEARENTFMRESZR

DR

E-ZT—hFERN FTHEESRITT —AE
FOUFERTARAEERSREEAEN
PRENBRREFE - REE-_Z—AF+=
A=+T—BUHEFEINTFARRAEELRSHRE
BABZHMEFHBEHNREIORFI7TELEE M
BREME12(a) ©



Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in April 1999 by the Board with specific written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee is composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
namely Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit
Hing Kwok. Mr Zhang Hong Bin who possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required by the
Listing Rules is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to review the Company’s financial information, to monitor
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to review
the Company’s financial controls, the risk management and
internal control systems and to oversee the relationship with
the Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

During the year 2015, the Audit Committee met three times
to perform its duties of reviewing the interim and annual
financial statements as well as the financial reporting matters
of the Group, evaluating the internal control system of the
Group, considering the engagement and scope of services of
the Auditor and reviewing arrangements for raising concerns
about improprieties.

The Audit Committee concluded that the internal control
system of the Group was effective in 2015 and was satisfied
with the resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as the
implementation, application and effectiveness of the policy on
arrangements for raising concerns about improprieties.

In March 2016, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2015
and to consider the re-appointment of the Auditor. The Audit
Committee recommended the Board to approve the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for 2015 and propose the
re-appointment of the Auditor at annual general meeting of
the Company for 2016 (“2016 AGM”).
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Attendance Records at Meetings ERNHETH

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting, EREERNEBE_S—AF+=-A=+—H1
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the FERBIZRERE ZEZRTHEE U

Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee held during LHENEESNEZZE TR L HEXIH
the year ended 31st December, 2015 is set out below: N

Number of meetings attended/held

BHE/BTNEEHE
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors BN BRAE EEhR fzeg BKZEEE
Non-Executive Chairman FHTERE
Mr Ge Peijian EEREE 111 4/4 N/A NE N/A i@
(elected as Chairman of the Board (R=F—-aF=HA=+H
on 20th March, 2015 and BREREFRTE
re-dlesignated to a non-executive RRZF—RFRA=FNA
Director on 29th May, 2015) HERBHRTEE)
Executive Directors HITEZ
Madam Hsu Feng % Lzt 111 4/4 N/A NE N/A i@
Mr Albert Tong mFREE 111 4/4 N/A T4 F N/A i
Mr Wang Fahua FEERE N/A @R 33 N/A T4 F N/A i
(appointed on 29th May, 2015) (R-F—FFRA
Tt NAEZE)
Madam Fan Suxia BPEREXL 111 4/4 N/A NE N/A i@
Resigned Executive Director BEHTES
Mr Chen Ganjin BResLAE N/A TR 0/ N/A T4 F N/A i
(former Chairman of the Board)) (FIFEERTE)
(resigned on 20th March, 2015) (R-FE—FF=H-+HFT)
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RUERE 1/1 4/4 11 N/A i
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTES
Mr Liang Jung-chi DURSHE 111 4/4 11 33
Mr Zhang Hong Bin ERMEE 1/1 4/4 11 33
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BRZE21F)
Mr Sit Hing Kwok b 1/1 4/4 11 33
(Chairman of Remuneration (BWZEESZ/E)
Committee)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ESCEENEER

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, new WEBAATZ (AFHEEBZRME)) Z1RTE
Directors could be elected by the Company or appointed by NEZEnEARNBEESAEEREZ T I
the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold HESEREZMEZES ETHBEZARAT
office only until the next following annual general meeting of —ERRBFAE L - RTEEAFERET-
the Company and the retiring Director shall be eligible for

re-election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the Code and the Board
is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience
of its members), and identifying, selecting and considering
any appointment or re-appointment of its own members. The
Board is also responsible for assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors.

At a regular Board meeting held in March 2015, the Board
resolved to accept the resignation of Mr Chen Ganjin as an
executive Director and his cessation of being the Chairman
of the Board, and elected Mr Ge Peijian as the Chairman
of the Board. At the 2015 annual general meeting of the
Company, all the retiring Directors have offered themselves
for re-election and were re-elected. Subsequently at a regular
Board meeting held in May 2015, the Board approved the
appointment of Mr Wang Fahua as an executive Director
and a member of Executive Committee and approved the
re-designation of Mr Ge Peijian from an executive Director
to a non-executive Director and his cessation of being a
member of the Executive Committee.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was
made by the Board during the year under review and the
Board resolved to keep the structure and composition of the
Board unchanged.

In addition, at a regular Board meeting held in March 2016,
the Board approved to nominate all retiring directors, who
will retire at the 2016 AGM and have offered themselves for
re-election, to be re-elected at that general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of
the Company is given a comprehensive orientation package,
including the latest information of the Group, induction
into their responsibilities and duties, terms of reference
of the relevant Committees and other related regulatory
requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep
them abreast of latest developments in the legislative or
regulatory environment, the Directors are regularly provided
with updates and briefings on the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Circulars or
guidance notes issued by various regulatory authorities or
organizations, where appropriate, are given to the Directors
for reading and reference.
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In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages
the Directors to enroll in a wide range of professional
development seminars and conferences. During the year
ended 31st December, 2015, the Company organized four
in-house seminars on the areas of corporate governance,
taxation, risk management and the development of the
Mainland so as to help the Directors refresh their knowledge
and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development in
which the Directors participated during the year ended 31st
December, 2015 is as follows:

RTHHEFL2EFEERER AR FZE
EZHESMIRBUNERERBIBER
Matg-RBE_T-—HF+-_A=+—RH1t
FERN AAFER/EFEBRAIEIN
NBRBREXRER BE EREERAMZ
LR MR ESERNE MBS MG -

REBEE-_T-—AF+-_A=+—HILFE &
EM2ENFEEXERBENT

Continuous
Professional Development
BESERR

Type Subject
Name of Directors BN BE TE
Non-Executive Chairman FHTERE
Mr Ge Peijian BiEEraE 1,2 A B
Executive Directors HITES
Madam Hsu Feng fr AL 1,2 A B
Mr Albert Tong & FR%E 1,2 A B
Mr Wang Fahua FIRELRLE 1,2 A B

(appointed on 29th May, 2015) (R=ZF—HFHA
ZFNHEZE)
Madam Fan Suxia BERELL 1,2 A B
Resigned Executive Director BIEPITES
Mr Chen Ganjin PREFEB I 2 B
(resigned on 20th March, 2015) (R=ZE—HF
= A=+ HEFF)

Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RIUE L& 1,2 A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors B HITES
Mr Liang Jung-chi REESLE 1,2 A B
Mr Zhang Hong Bin BERMEE 1,2 A B
Mr Sit Hing Kwok B B S A 1,2 A B
Types: 24 -

1. Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference
or forums

2. Reading relevant information and updates
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Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Company

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management
updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company, each of the Directors has confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout the
year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and
effective internal control system is maintained within the
Group in order to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets. The Company has adopted its own codes
on internal control for itself and its subsidiaries since 2005 in
respect of all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. The
codes on internal control are reviewed regularly and modified
pursuant to operational requirements of the Group.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least
once a year and the Audit Committee held a meeting in 2015
for that purpose. The Board, through the review of the Audit
Committee, is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Group’s codes on
internal control during the year ended 31st December, 2015
and considers that the Group’s internal control system was
effective and adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the
Audit Committee, the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and related budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they
are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2015, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; have
made judgments and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to
form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2015 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 52 and 53.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
to the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st
December, 2015 amounted to approximately HK$1,047,000
and HK$1,127,000 respectively. The non-audit services
provided during the year were taxation services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is an employee of
a core connected person of the Company and has day-to-
day involvement and knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
Company secretarial services are provided to the Company
by sharing of administrative services with its core connected
person on a cost basis. The Company Secretary supports the
Board by ensuring board procedures are followed and board
proceedings are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is
also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised
of all applicable law, rules, regulations and corporate
governance developments. During the year under review, the
Company Secretary has taken relevant professional training
as required under the Listing Rules.

7 RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || 5 £ @5 R /A 5]

ESNEBMEMBRRNEE

ARAEEFARBREAEERELATHEE
W2 HBAEESEYBHRENGEEMBERE -
EREAEEEE T -—AF+_-_A=1+—H
LHFENGEEMBHRRG EFCERERRK
RAAEMNEAEE BELEENAENH
MG YO RRBELENERREGE
IR -

REEHRRNETEREFZTIENER
UREHAMBRRERBUNER  MKFE
BAREBEZE_T—AFt_A=t—HLHF
BiR A M MR ER BN FEL2 R FE3E H)
VB REEF -

B ET N &

REBEEZE-_T—AF+_A=+T—RHLFE 5t
ZERI R AEERENBEZMIEBZRBEE L
2 &R 5 A% A1,047,000/% 7T F11,127,000
BT FENIREAFETZ RS I TG AR o

DNEME

RRBZ RAMER/ARB — IR OEEAL
ZRE WMB2EEAXFARANBEEE 2
AIME RIS TR A R R 220 BEA TR
AEBFBHEMITRRE 27 ARARBEHE -
RAMEMPDEERERESTRIZF TAET
NREZREFBEMENBRET - RITAE
RESHITN THRAAERER RAIKRR
Bl ARERERZER - ROBFEARN A7
WEDK2MT (EMRAD) AEKRZEBEE
E-= I



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders through various channels including
the Company’s annual general meetings. In 2015, all the
Board members for the time being including, inter-alia, the
Chairman of the Board and chairmen of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, attended the annual
general meeting of the Company to answer questions
from the shareholders. Representatives of the Auditor
also attended that meeting to answer questions about the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2014.

In order to further enhance communication with the
shareholders of the Company and enable the Company’s
shareholders to have timely and updated information of
the Group, the Company has set up its own website at
http://www.rivera.com.hk where the corporate information,
interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
business development and other information of the Company
are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Calling a General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company holding at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings of the Company may request the Board
to call a general meeting. The request (a) must contain the
name(s) of the requisitionist(s), their contact details and
number of shares of the Company held by them, (b) must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
general meeting, (c) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(d) must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Registered
Office”) for the attention of the Company Secretary of the
Company, and (e) if a special resolution is to be proposed at
the general meeting, must include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution as a
special resolution.

The Directors must proceed to call a general meeting within
21 days after the date of receipt of a valid request (which has
been duly verified by the share registrar of the Company).
If the Board does not duly call a general meeting that must
be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing
more than one-half of their total voting rights may themselves
call a general meeting which shall be held within 3 months
from the date of deposit of the request.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(a) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the
Company having a relevant right to vote, or at least 50
shareholders of the Company having the relevant voting
right may:

(iy propose a resolution at an annual general meeting
at least 6 weeks before such meeting or no later
than the time at which the notice of the meeting is
given; or

(i)  request the Company to circulate, to the shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not exceeding 1,000 words
for either a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution
(if they are entitled to vote on that resolution) or other
business to be dealt with at that meeting at least 7
days before the meeting.

The duly signed request shall be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company within the above prescribed
timeline.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.rivera.com.hk.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. To the extent such
information is publicly available, shareholders may at any
time put forward enquiries to the Board through the Company
Secretary in writing by mail to the Registered Office or by
e-mail to ir@rivera.com.hk.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2015
and up to the date of publication of the annual report of the
Company for 2015.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED J I SO 5. B BEBR )

RBRRAELRERERR

(a) EFBEHBEREEZAR ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂx?ﬁp
REED2SBIEER ZRE  HE LS
HEERBREE 2 A RFIRE

() AIRBRERBFRGRITNED A
E%&TLmﬁﬁAmL %mz
RIEXEREZAE L8&E 2 AH
E 1)

(i) ARBRERRERITAELELRER
AABRABERDZBERASBS
ZARNRBRREH - TBA—T
FZRRMEBRIIE H AR FERAT
MAET (NFEEATRZRERER
Z) REMBFEZAS EEERN
=

EEREZNHFRERAN LARTE 2K
PRAKGXE MM =G WERAREAR
KRB ZREIME

b) "2 RRREZEENEFLED
HIWRARF MW £ B A
http://www.rivera.com.hk °

MEERRHEER

k$7ﬁ$ RZBRMBPEREEEWERD

BERA (mm%%%EFﬁﬁim%T

ﬂ¢uﬂ§ﬂtﬁﬁmﬁh@2£ﬂ ERE

HAZERABRARITM REUEREERNES
PRREZERBBATNWENAZAEAL A BIE
2t =Rk EE 2 ir@rivera.com.hk °

HBERNHZERED

REE-_ZE—RE+_RA=+—HIEELHE
ZRBEARR 2T — ﬁﬁfﬁﬁzaﬁ'$
NAZEBERHL S EE



Profile of the Directors and Officers

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Mr Ge Peijian, aged 58, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) since July 2014.
He has been elected as Chairman of the Board since
March 2015. He has subsequently been re-designated from
executive Director to non-executive Director of the Company
and has ceased to act as a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board since May 2015. He has also been
delegated to act as a director of F/BKEEBEEBR A A
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited), a major
subsidiary of the Company in Shanghai, since September
2014.

He holds a Master of Business Administration degree and
qualifies as a Senior Economist in the Mainland. During the
period from July 1993 to September 1996, he took up the
post of deputy director of the office of Finance and Taxation
Bureau of Pudong New Area in Shanghai and he acted as
the director of the property right administration of State-
owned Assets Administration Office of Pudong New Area in
Shanghai during the period from September 1996 to May
2001. During the period from August 2001 to April 2014, he
took up the post of the president of Shanghai Pudong Road
& Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. (“Pudong Road Bridge”), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and during
the period from August 2003 to April 2014, he also acted as
the secretary of the party committee of Pudong Road Bridge.
In addition, during the period from April 2009 to April 2014,
Mr Ge acted as the vice secretary of the party committee,
the secretary of the commission for discipline inspection and
the vice president of Shanghai Pudong Development (Group)
Co., Ltd. (L/BHRERE (@) AR 2AF). He also acted
as a member of the Commission for Discipline Inspection
of Pudong New Area in Shanghai during the period from
December 2011 to April 2014.

Mr Ge has been a director of Cachet Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise
Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since September 2014.

Mr Ge is the vice president and the general manager of
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and one of the substantial shareholders of
the Company, while Mr Wang Fahua, an executive Director
of the Company, is the general manager of Investment
Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Both of Mr Ge and Mr
Wang are also minority shareholders of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.
In addition, Mr Ge acted as the vice secretary of the party
committee of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., one
of the substantial shareholders of the Company, during the
period from April 2014 to October 2015.
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SENSRITHRASEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 65, has been appointed a Director
of the Company since January 1990 and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Board since August 2005.
She is now an executive Director of the Company and has
been appointed a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company since December 2003. She has over 10 years’
experience in film production, and in property development
and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has
been engaged in the property development, hospitality and
leisure business in the Mainland in recent 20 years. She is
also the Honorary Consul of the Principality of Monaco in
Shanghai.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and all of them act as executive directors of
Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”), a listed company in Hong
Kong and a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQO”). Madam Hsu is also the chairman, managing director
and substantial shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her
persons acting in concert, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, have an interest in 779,274,488 issued shares of
the Company.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 33, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a director of a number of its
subsidiaries since March 2001. He has also been appointed
a member of the Executive Committee of the Board since
August 2005. He has actively participated in business
development, corporate management, property trading and
securities investment for years.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive Director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and all of them act as executive directors
of TGL. He is also the vice-chairman and substantial
shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong is taken to
have, together with his persons acting in concert, Madam
Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, an interest in
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Wang Fahua, aged 53, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board since May 2015.

He holds a Master of Polymer Chemistry degree. During
the period from October 1994 to September 2004, he took
up the post of assistant to general manager of F/8maR)T
ST EZE#E H 025 (Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Real Estate Park Import and Export Company). He joined
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in October 2004 and took up principal
posts in Strategic Planning Department and Investment &
Security Management Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
during the years. He has served in Investment Department of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech since March 2015 and was promoted as
a general manager of such department in January 2016.

In addition to being a staff of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, Mr Wang is
a minority shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and a director
of Best Central Developments Limited (“Best Central”),
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhangjing Hi-Tech, while Mr
Ge Peijian, the non-executive Chairman of the Board, is the
vice president, general manager and minority shareholder of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, and also the president of Best Central.

Madam Fan Suxia, aged 44, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Board since November 2014.

She holds a bachelor's degree in financial accounting, a
Master of Management degree in accounting and a Master
of Business Administration degree. She qualifies as a Chief
Accountant and Senior Accountant in the Mainland. She
joined Pudong Road Bridge in May 2005 and was principally
responsible for financial duties. She was promoted as a
manager of Financial Department of Pudong Road Bridge in
March 2012 and resigned from her post in September 2014.
She has years of experience in financial management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 65, has been appointed a non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2006 and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board since
March 2012. He was an executive Director of the Company
until December 2003.
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He holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree and
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr Sung has about 20 years’ experience in retail, property
development and marketing in Taiwan and has about 25
years' experience in financial analysis and management.
He has taken part in business development, corporate
management and property development in the Mainland
and Hong Kong and has provided consultancy services
on business and investment management in Taiwan. He
also acted as the general consultant of the group operation
committee of Yungtay Engineering Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange) until February 2013
and a director of its subsidiary, ;x KXE## (FRE) R A A
(formerly known as /@K RKEHZEER AR, until July
2013. Mr Sung is a consultant of TGL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liang Jung-chi, aged 68, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
February 1994, a member of the Audit Committee of the
Board since April 1999 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board since March 2012. He is a physician
in Taiwan.

The annual director’'s fee of Mr Liang has been increased
from HK$81,600 to HK$87,600 with effect from 1st January,
2016, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2015 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 42, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board since April
2005, and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board since March 2012.

Mr Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree in economics. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is also a qualified lawyer in the
Mainland. He is a financial controller of a company engaged
in property leasing and management in the Mainland and has
years of experience in financial management.
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The annual director’s fee of Mr Zhang has been increased
from HK$108,000 to HK$112,800 with effect from 1st
January, 2016, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2015 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Sit Hing Kwok, aged 66, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Board since July
2007. He has also been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board since March 2012.

He has been engaged in supervisory positions in journalism
for over 20 years. From 1992 up to September 2009, Mr Sit
was a director of United Daily News Limited in Hong Kong.
He was also a director of the Hong Kong news bureau of the
United Daily News Group until September 2009. He is now a
freelance writer and has been a lecturer of the Department
of Journalism & Communication of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University since November 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Sit has been increased from
HK$102,000 to HK$106,800 with effect from 1st January,
2016, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2015 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 49, has been appointed the
Company Secretary of the Company since March 1998. She
attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in business studies, and is an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 57, has been appointed the
Financial Controller of the Company since September 1999.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors
SSRHREE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present its Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2015 and the independent Auditor's report
thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year were
property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company while the principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are listed
under Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 100 to 102.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s
business for the year under review, an indication of the future
development of the Group’s business as well as an analysis
of the Group’s principal risk and uncertainties are set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to 15.
This discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and
regulations, and an account of the Group’s relationships with
its employees, customers and suppliers are set out below in
this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December, 2015 and the Group’s financial position as at the
end thereof are set out on pages 54 to 114. An analysis by
operating segments and geographical location is set out in
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 89
to 94.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2014: Nil).

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31st December,
2015 (2014: HK$0.02 per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 31st May, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Thursday, 26th May, 2016 (the “2016 AGM"). For
determining the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the 2016 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 24th May, 2016 to Thursday,
26th May, 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 23rd May, 2016 for registration.

The record date and time for entitlement to the proposed final
dividend for 2015 is Tuesday, 31st May, 2016 at 4:30 p.m..
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 31st
May, 2016 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Of the gross proceeds from operations and purchases of
the Group for the year under review, less than 30% was

attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
donated HK$10,000 for charitable and other causes.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
added fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$755,000
(2014: Nil) while it disposed of and wrote off assets with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$27,000 (2014:

HK$270,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are
shown in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 99 and 100.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, for

sale or investment purposes, is set out on page 115.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the Group

as at 31st December, 2015.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the

year.

None of interest expenses of the Group were capitalized

during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2015, 2,608,546,511 ordinary shares
with no par value of the Company were in issue and were fully
paid, and the total amount of share capital of the Company
was approximately HK$442 244,000. The Company did not
issue any new shares nor buy back any issued shares during

the year under review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note
23 to the consolidated financial statements on page 107.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any

of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS IR Z #8177 5%

Other than the share option scheme of the Company BERNBEEWRBE LA S ——FEHEMZ AN
adopted in 2012 as disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked BIERERTEISN A A BIREEEE NS EmET
agreements were entered into by the Company during the SRR ERSE o NEERER RS E
year under review or subsisted at the end of the year. WEFE -

RESERVES #iE

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st AKAFIR ZZE—ARAFE+_A=+—B2zZa%»
December, 2015 amounted to approximately HK$71,074,000 K EE B AVEZET71,074,0008 0 (ZFE — M4
(2014: HK$140,396,000). 140,396,000/ 7T, ) °

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company REBRKNARFEANZ FHESE IS NS BIE
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement of NELTEREBBE VA SR NF1148
Changes in Equity and Note 29 to the consolidated financial IR A BT IR E M EE29 o

statements on pages 57 to 58 and page 114 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ,E\ﬂ%mg

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group AREEBREREN BFE 2 EE LIER R
for the preceding five financial years is set out on page 119. TIHEHMNE1198

DIRECTORS =

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report AARIPEEZH)EE HAUARKR O BEERNEANR
and those who were in office during the year under review L2 AIFHABEETZARTESBKE

and up to the date of this Report are: m
Non-Executive Chairman HHITEE
Mr Ge Peijian BiEfeisE
(elected as Chairman on 20th March, 2015 (R-FE—RAF=HA -+ HEHESTE"
and re-designated from an executive Director AR-ZFE—FAFAA-F+NI1H
to a non-executive Director on 29th May, 2015) A ITEFFEFRIHTESE)
Executive Directors HITEE
Madam Hsu Feng R At
Mr Albert Tong & FREAE
Mr Wang Fahua FIEERE
(appointed on 29th May, 2015) (R=ZF—AFARA-F+NAEZT)
Madam Fan Suxia SBEREXT
Mr Chen Ganijin (former Chairman) PREQSRIC A (FIEEL/E)
(resigned on 20th March, 2015) (RZFE—ARF=H =+ HEF)
Non-Executive Director HHITEE
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RNOEEFLE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHEHITEE
Mr Liang Jung-chi REHELSE
Mr Zhang Hong Bin R EE
Mr Sit Hing Kwok B B A
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A profile of the existing Directors of the Company is shown on
pages 30 to 34.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 12(a) to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 96 and 97.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company
were determined by the remuneration committee of the Board
(the “Committee”) and the fees of the non-executive Directors
of the Company (whether independent or not) were fixed by
the Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the
Company and on the recommendation of the Committee.

Pursuant to Article 73 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any Director of the Company appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting. Mr Wang Fahua was appointed an
executive Director of the Company by the Board in late May
2015 and will therefore retire at the 2016 AGM in accordance
with Article 73 and being eligible, he offers himself for
re-election.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
Articles 77 to 79 provide that at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
nearest number to but not more than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election and
shall be eligible for re-election. In this connection, Mr Sung
Tze-Chun and Mr Zhang Hong Bin will retire by rotation
at the 2016 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company
is subject to separate resolutions to be approved by
shareholders at the 2016 AGM and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be
despatched to the shareholders together with the notice of
the annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the 2016 AGM have an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The persons who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31st
December, 2015 and up to the date of this Report included
Mr Chen Ganijin, Mr Ge Peijian, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert
Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Mr Chen Xiaoshi, Mr Gu Xueli,
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, Ms Lee Yuen Han and Mr Lau Che Kong,
Spencer.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622) (“Companies Ordinance”), every Director of
the Company shall be indemnified by insurance out of the
funds of the Company against any liabilities which he/she
may incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are
not avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group
during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFQ”)), which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein (including interests
and short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(1) The Company:
Ordinary Shares

EECRSERRAR

RZB-—RAF+ZA=+—H XQAIRE
ERARBRETMABEEEE (12 (B EH
EG&P) (BET1E)EXVEIZ EERE) 2
- EREELEEROTEARAER (BHK
HIE R B) 35215 2 # 7E Ao & A 5% 15 Bl By it
MERMA (BRERE (EHMRAEERD) F
BAAGEHRMR BEE NG SRR ) » KABRE
BMAERZMARAR ([BRM]) (EH L
mARAD) ([ KETHRAD 1) ZREMEARRQA]
KB Rz s FORB T

(1) AA7:
ZER

Number of shares of the Company

ARRAZBRBEE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors Y AR RERR NEER HitigE s
Mr Ge Peijian BiEREE Nil £ Nil £ Nil & (4) Nil £&
Madam Hsu Feng (B) % WiEB) 317,178,162 (C) Nil 4% 255,676,326 (D), (E) 206,420,000 (F)
Mr Albert Tong (B) ZTR%E (B) Nil £& Nil £ Nil & 779,274,488 (F)
Mr Wang Fahua TERELEE Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ (4) Nil £
(2) The Company’s associated corporation: (2) AATZABHEE:
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port ERRIMEFBERRAT
Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”) (IBEFELT]D
Registered capital ST E A
Amount of registered capital of SZMP
MEFEBARZEMELRE

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EEnE BAER RERER NERER HpiEs
Mr Ge Peijian BEREE Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & (G) Nil 4
Madam Hsu Feng (B) % #l2Z+ (B) Nil 4 Nil £ RMB50,000,000 (D), (H) Nil £

AR #50,000,0007C

Mr Albert Tong (B) #FR%EE (B) Nil 4 Nil £ Nil £& (H) Nil £

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || 5 £ @5 R /A 5]



Notes:

(A)

As at 31st December, 2015, a total of 779,955,407 issued
shares (being 29.9% of the total number of issued shares)
of the Company were beneficially held by Best Central
Developments Limited (“Best Central”). Best Central was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”).

Mr Ge Peijian was the president of Best Central and Mr
Wang Fahua was a director of Best Central. In addition,
Mr Ge was the vice president and the general manager of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng.

As at 31st December, 2015, they were considered to
be persons acting in concert and held an aggregate of
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company, representing
29.87% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company, pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial
owner an interest in 317,178,162 issued shares of the
Company.

As at 31st December, 2015, Madam Hsu Feng was entitled
to control the exercise of more than one-third of voting
power at general meetings of Tomson Group Limited
(“TGL").

A total of 255,676,326 issued shares of the Company were
beneficially held by Cosmos Success Development Limited
("Cosmos Success”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL,
hence, Madam Hsu Feng was deemed to have an interest
in these shares through a corporation controlled by her.

Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements with her
sons, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Albert Tong, to
sell to each of them 103,210,000 issued shares of the
Company, in an aggregate of 206,420,000 issued shares,
which have been pledged by Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and
Mr Albert Tong in favour of Madam Hsu Feng as a security
for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid
agreements. Pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng was
taken to have a security interest in those 206,420,000
issued shares of the Company.

EE

(©)

(B)

(F)
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As at 31st December, 2015, on account of the aforesaid
agreements and pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng
held and was deemed to hold an interest in a total of
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company and Mr Albert
Tong was therefore taken to have an interest in those
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company by virtue of
being a person acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng.

(G) As at 31st December, 2015, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech held
an interest of RMB183.55 million (being 49.5%) in the
registered capital of SZMP. Mr Ge Peijian was the vice
president and the general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

(H) TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being 13.5%) in
the registered capital of SZMP through its wholly-owned
subsidiary. Madam Hsu Feng was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the registered capital of SZMP through a
corporation controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong was a director and a substantial
shareholder of TGL.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company and their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, debentures and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31st December, 2015, which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein (including interests or short positions which they
were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, there
were no options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31st December, 2015, nor was there
any option outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the
year.

The major terms of the 2012 Scheme are as follows:

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED J I SO 5. B BEBRR S

MN-ZE—hE+-A=1+—0 ER L
FERIBE GEHERBERD) R ITH
BRWEBEAS H£779,274 4880 AN A A
BEITRG 2EE M5 TRICERNIER
FHEGEMZEE—BRITE AL BIHE AR
BZET779,274, 488 AR A E BITRMD 2

Ng

MRS o

G) RZEBE—AF+—A=+—H F®IRMH
RHEFBRRZEMEARPIFTE AR
183,550,0007T (BN49.5% ) 2 ek - B 12 &
EERRIRND ZEIEETR MBI -

H) SEEEFRAEZ2EWNBARTNRMETS
AaElZ FEMERPREHF ARS50,000,0007T
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Purpose

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants
The participants of the 2012 Scheme include, inter alia:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity, including any executive director of any
of these entities; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or

(iii) any customer of or supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or

(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
must not exceed 260,854,651 shares, being 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
this Report, unless shareholders’ approval of the Company
has been obtained.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to each participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant of option shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant to be in excess of the Individual Limit, such further
grant must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

Exercise period of options

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not be more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Minimum holding period of an option
before exercise

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of
the relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of a consideration for the
grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any option that may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the
higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; and
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(i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective till 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such valid
period, no further options will be offered or granted but in
all other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year
nor at the end of the year ended 31st December, 2015,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The following existing Directors of the Company are
considered to have interests in business which may compete
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than that business where the
Directors have been appointed/were appointed as directors
to represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group,
pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(i)  Mr Ge Peijian had been the vice secretary of the
party committee of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Group”) up to October 2015 and
is now the vice president and the general manager
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Zhangjiang Group and its
subsidiary, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech together with their
respective subsidiaries have participated in property
development and investment in Shanghai, including,
inter alia, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New
Area (“Zhangjiang Park”); and

(i)
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(i) Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong are chairman and
vice-chairman of board of directors of TGL respectively.
They are also substantial shareholders of TGL. TGL
has through its subsidiaries taken part in property
development and investment in Shanghai, mainly in
Pudong New Area, as well as in Tianjin and Macau.

In addition, Mr Chen Ganijin, the former Chairman of the
Board, acted as the secretary of the party committee and
the general manager of Zhangjiang Group as well as the
president of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech during his tenure of office as
a Director of the Company and was therefore considered to
have interests in business which might compete or was likely
to compete with the business of the Group.

Property development and investment is one of the
principal activities of the Group. The Group participates in
property development and management in the Zhangjiang
Park and Fengxian District of Shanghai through its
subsidiaries and an associated company. Accordingly,
the business of Zhangjiang Group, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
and TGL (collectively the “Potential Competitors”) in the
property sector in Shanghai, particularly in Pudong New
Area (the “Excluded Business”), may potentially compete
with the Group’s business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed
company in Shanghai whereas Zhangjiang Group is a state-
owned enterprise in Shanghai and the holding Company
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. TGL is a listed company in Hong
Kong. The Excluded Business is managed by independent
management and administration of the Potential Competitors
respectively. Besides, the Board is independent of the boards
of directors of the Potential Competitors and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company would assist in
monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at
an arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with him (within the meaning
of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into
during the year ended 31st December, 2015 or subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the arrangement for sharing of administrative
expenses with TGL as disclosed in Note 24(b) to the
consolidated financial statements on page 108, no contracts
for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2015.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485) (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all
its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined
contribution scheme effective from November 2002 and
is funded by contributions from employer and employees
pursuant to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. Should the
employer make any voluntary contributions for the employees
under the scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature
can be applied to reduce the amount of future voluntary
contributions payable by the employer.

In addition, the employees of the Group in the Mainland are
members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local government.
The employer and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules
of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the above schemes and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to approximately
HK$44,000 (2014: HK$49,000) and no contributions were
forfeited.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets
to the Group's business. The Group provides competitive
remuneration package and makes regular review to attract
and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that relationship is the
fundamentals of business. Therefore, the Group maintains
close relationship with its suppliers and customers. To
maintain the Group’s competitiveness, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of products quality
and service to its customers. During the year ended 31st
December, 2015, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2015, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly
or indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued shares
and underlying shares of the Company and those interests
were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMAL ZES

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8 THKRE (K
REEERIN EEXEEWEEARTZE
BT RABE IR D BB iES5% sk A E RIS -
MizSEERAER (FHMBEKN) 5$£336
Bz REHENBTFHFZEZLMA:

Number of shares held
(proportion to the
number of issued shares)

FERDEE

Name of shareholders BREEE (HERTROBEZEDLL)

Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. FERI(EE)BRATA 779,955,407 (29.90%)
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (a) ([RIKE])(a)

Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development £/ 3R/ T S RHEEEHEROER A 779,955,407  (29.90%)
Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) (a) ([T ) (a)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (b) #FRTE (b) 779,274,488  (29.87%)

Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) (c) HBESEERAR ([FEEE]) () 255,676,326  (9.80%)

Notes:

Bt -

(a) The references to 779,955,407 shares were related to
the same block of shares of the Company which was
beneficially held by Best Central. Best Central was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai (Z.J.) Hi-Tech Park
Limited (“Shanghai (Z.J.)”) which was in turn wholly owned
by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in which Zhangjiang Group held
more than 50% interest. Therefore, Best Central, Shanghai
(Z.J.), Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and Zhangjiang Group were
interested or were taken to be interested in these shares
pursuant to the SFO.

(b) By virtue of being a person acting in concert with Madam
Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was taken to have
an interest in 779,274,488 shares of the Company which
referred to the same block of shares of the Company
in which Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong were
interested or taken to be interested, as disclosed in the
above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” in this Report.

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || 5 £ @5 R /A 5]

(@) AT K 2779,955,407R% B& 15 ThiE A A
RIZR—# 5 % F R E Best Central
B 25% A - Best Central A& Shanghai (Z.J.)
Hi-Tech Park Limited ([Shanghai (Z.J.)])
ZEEMBAR MEEHRIKRGOEE
A RIEBERARERIRG R E50%HE
# ° At - Best Central * Shanghai (Z.J.) * 5&
LD R TSERE (BHRHAEGDD
BEHEIERBEBZERMOESZ -

(b) BFEEEBRNEARATEHGE LT A BT
AT HER AR T779,274,48818 N A A
RE1D 2 #E 25 o 52 ERR D Ty A TR & & A AT it
EEAIEEZEFESRAR ] —GFTHE
Bzt RS TREEHERWE AR
BzARREZR—#tR R -



(c) The 255,676,326 shares of the Company were beneficially
held by Cosmos Success. Cosmos Success was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman Enterprises Corp.
(“Hoffman”) which was in turn wholly owned by Tomson
Corporation in which TGL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Cosmos Success, Hoffman, Tomson Corporation
and TGL were interested or were taken to be interested in
these shares pursuant to the SFO.

The aforesaid shares constituted a part of the total
interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr
Tong Chi Kar Charles in the shares of the Company as
disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this Report
and in this paragraph respectively.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company
are not aware of any person (other than the Directors of the
Company) who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short
positions in the number of issued shares and the underlying
shares of the Company and those interests or short positions
were required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Report, the Company maintains a sufficient public
float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
has mainly engaged in the sale and leasing of car parking
spaces in Shanghai and securities trading in Hong Kong, so
the principal activities of the Group did not give arise to any
material adverse influences to the environment.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. The conscientious use of resources and
adoption of green office practices in the Group’s offices, such
as double-sided printing and copying, promoting re-cycling
principle and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lightings and electrical appliances, underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment.

Report of the Directors
SEEHRES
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Report of the Directors
EBRHREE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules, and other applicable local laws and
regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates. During
the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on it.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 have been audited by the
Auditor of the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
and there was no change in the Auditor of the Company in
the previous three financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2016 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 54 to 114, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

RIS EMIRESE

FINEBERIFAEFERR
(REBRMALZ HRAA])
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KRR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ENEhERES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’'s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31st December, 2015, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18th March, 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
RoBmE
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EZ—F—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
liikz3 FET FHT
Gross proceeds from operations AT R 7 401,178 352,815
Revenue WA 7 1,955 26,722
Cost of sales $H & X AR (581) (15,473)
Gross profit EA 1,374 11,249
Dividends from available-for-sale A HERE 2REKA
investments 19,118 20,856
Other income H A A 9 20,909 13,949
Selling expenses HEE A (104) (61)
Administrative expenses THEHR (12,449) (10,930)
Exchange loss bE H &5 18 (14,305) (92)
Net gain in held-for-trading investments &% & U5 F 58 13,278 33,791
27,821 68,762
Share of results of an associate N 141,306 143,601
Profit before taxation R A5 A1 a2 A 169,127 212,363
Taxation ME 10 5,463 (19,167)
Profit for the year F & @A 11 174,590 193,196
Profit for the year attributable to: FERMPEIT
Owners of the Company RARERFFEA 174,126 192,578
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR AR R M 2 464 618
174,590 193,196
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRAER (BI)
- Basic —ER 14 6.68 7.38
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meRRNEMERRES

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit for the year FEm 174,590 193,196
Other comprehensive expense: HEME2EMAX:
ltems that may be subsequently AEF A EE B X HE
reclassified to profit or loss
Loss on change in fair value of AIHEHERE AT EE B
available-for-sale investments EAZEE (21,512) (74,734)
Exchange differences arising BRETIEBEEREEZ
from translation of: E N 8
— other foreign operations —H A INETE (12,137) (7,820)
— an associate ——REE QA (40,257) (23,883)
Other comprehensive expense FREEMEEMSBE
for the year (73,906) (106,437)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHBRAE 100,684 86,759
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2EkE (AX) 8%
attributable to: DB :
Owners of the Company RAGIERFTFAA 101,005 86,647
Non-controlling interests FEFRRR AR R (321) 112
100,684 86,759
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO BRI IR R

At 31st December, 2015 R=—Z—HF+-_HA=1+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B it FHET FHET
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R B R R 15 7,385 7,703
Investment property KEYE 17 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate AN - ey 18 859,425 928,564
Deferred tax assets RIERTEE E 25 16,245 16,973
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 19 334,880 338,910
1,246,498 1,320,713
Current Assets REEE
Properties held for sale FEYE 20,325 21,532
Held-for-trading investments FERE 20 433,437 185,876
Dividend receivable e U % B 18 - 185,878
Other receivables and prepayments H A 8 YR BR X R TR AN SR IE 21,842 11,903
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITERR 21 697,398 688,203
1,173,002 1,093,392
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JERTE SR - M ER
and accruals BRR R TEIRKIE 22 20,611 21,791
Tax payable JE A A 18 109,051 130,855
129,662 152,646
Net Current Assets RBEERE 1,043,340 940,746
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBERE 2,289,838 2,261,459
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& s 23 442,244 442 244
Reserves EER 1,789,857 1,741,023
Equity attributable to owners of AAREERFEARGERS
the Company 2,232,101 2,183,267
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS AR SR AE =R 10,681 21,183
Total Equity vy £ 2,242,782 2,204,450
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIBEE 25 47,056 57,009
2,289,838 2,261,459

The consolidated financial statements were approved and AR RBEN—E—XFE= A+ \HEES

W
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th March, %;t)&jﬁ%% B THESAREE:
2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ge Peijian Albert Tong
B =T [E
Chailrman Director
ey EF
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2015 2014
—E-afF —T-mFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation B 5 A A 169,127 212,363
Adjustments for: AT AR EE
Interest income F B A (18,834) (13,526)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ~ AJ 5 % & 7 ik B WA (19,118) (20,856)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - W= M & HITE 1,047 1,040
Loss on change in fair value of HEREATEZ
held-for-trading investments EEZEE 47,499 7,610
Gain on disposal/written off property, & MEEME - BE R
plant and equipment Bz W (4) (222)
Share of results of an associate i AN (141,306) (143,601)
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEEAIZ
in working capital KEREME 38,411 42,808
Decrease in properties held for sale T EMER D 1,207 14,650
Increase in held-for-trading investments FEREEM (295,060) (101,762)
Increase in other receivables and H b R UL BR R R A 3R I8
prepayments 0 (9,861) (1,707)
Increase (decrease) in trade and FERE Z RN B EMNERR
other payables and accruals RIERFKIEL 0 O D) 402 (740)
Cash used in operations AREEEE RS (264,901) (46,751)
Income taxes paid B AER (3,131) (4,234)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ARG TE < HE FE (268,032) (50,985)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Dividends received from an associate B s & A B2 iR B HA
(net of withholding tax) (B HBRMAEAT) 338,507 =
Interest received B W F B 18,729 13,501
Dividends received from available-for-sale BRI HEHEREZ
investments &% B U A 1,636 20,856
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment FT{S K18 31 492
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYWE - BEMEE (755) -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERETH 2RSS EHE 358,148 34,849
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIREMER
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l & E B
Dividends paid ERIRE (52,171) (52,171)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of EN—KHEBARZ
a subsidiary FEIE IR AR R A A 2 AR B (10,181) =
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES AREMETH2RE (62,352) (52,171)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND HR&RREZEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS B OB ) B4 27,764 (68,307)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —A—HZBEER
AT 1ST JANUARY ReEEER 688,203 766,330
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEH R o B (18,569) (9,820)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS +t-A=+t—H=zHEK
AT 31ST DECEMBER, Re%EEER
represented by cash and bank balances B3R & K RITAE £ 697,398 688,203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office and
principal place of business is Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-
12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are property
development and investment, and securities trading and
investment.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™):
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations'

Amendments to HKFRS 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to

Disclosure Initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle!

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2018.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include (a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect

2.

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fr O MRS ER R 5E

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, the Group may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.
Regarding the Group’s other financial assets and
financial liabilities, it is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 was issued and it establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

? RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |5 £ B R /A )

2.

FERAMEI REER (BEUHK

SR @)

EAREEREZNEMELERNERER
EZEBRE  —RRERNST KRR
BEXATE - UBERAFEZEBT
B HEENAREBKEDA RS RE R
EVBEE  UEEBANKERSREE
BHELAZREREBRSINAE KR
BEASZHEMNEF T  —REBK
N EHARMEERE 2T E
FrEEMEHREREAREAREE
VEEFEIRIZE QAT EE - WIN RIE
(BAEMBHREEN) FoHR  NEEA
EARHE2BER N EREEMEER
ST 2 ERaRENATFEED (FER
BEIN) UREFEGBRERTERIBBE
YA o

ARBEZBRHMAKERKRRER (F
B BREER) FSRAEHANEE 2
AHHERENDBRFEEKRTE -
AW AEEARGERHEHEZENGIEMG
it BRI ER SR AREA
75 & E R TSR (E - B %R R
BHMEHREELEAFEIHEER-

(BEMBHREER]) 155 2 28 M 3 Hl
E—RE-—2EAEAKERAESAEER
BRMEEZRBEAR R (BEV R
FER) FARAEMIEL - HE IR IREE
R (EEGER) F185 WAL (&
BEETER) F115 [EES L] MiAR
Bz WARERIES

(BEMBHRESER) £155- 20 RAY
REAERERNETPEEAGE MR
BZWARIR  ERERRZERALM
RME MR RGAEES 2KE A
= - ZERIS AR EERRAZ 5K



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until a detailed review has been
completed.

The Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” give some guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality in practice.

The Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016. The
Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 1 will have no material
impact on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and comply with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which concern
the preparation of consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules™).

The provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and
directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year beginning on or after
1st January, 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements
set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts
have been amended with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and to tie in with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ended 31st December, 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31st December, 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) or Listing Rules but not
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

? RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |5 £ B R /A )

3.

TESTHER

AP BRRDRBEEBGAMAE
Bz (CBERMBEHREEL) REUNE
REE (2rlEP) (F622F) 6 iR
FITEERREVE B AR TE ° UL S - 7 B B 7% e
RIME AR (B LR (T (L
MARAD DREZERBEESEA-

ARBIME @ & (REMEH) (F622
BE)FRRERANREEZRHEENEX
ZHENER T —RAF—A— B &R
SRR R R A o AN K ETAR AL P
HEBFERBZHERECSLEERE
CREVED) MIERT WS bt 8 (FBI
BEER) —H-EH-BE2E—FT—HF
T-A=1T AL RFELRE B BER
RAZEMZRFED TERIAEST
WEHRE - FRABE_T—MNFE+ A
=t HUEMRFEZHLBREHDREN
BRERNGFEVBHRERAZIINIE - RIE
A& B (R aHER) (F328)8k (L™
RAD EUEATHEERERE (BF
By (F622% ) HEEFT CEMAAD
BARBZER ERNGEMBERRTE
BERE-

WSS E BRI - AR A BT R
DIRBELRAEERE HEETERMTA
BRFEFFERIN -

RS2 A —RARR & W) KR R PR 15
REZAFEMESE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group losses control of the subsidiary. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date of the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the
application of equity method of accounting are prepared
using uniform accounting policies with the Group for
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the associate to bring its accounting
policies into line with those used in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (coniinued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the three categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held-for-trading investments if
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Financial instruments (coniinuea)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from remeasurement recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the “net gain (loss) in held-for-trading
investments” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including dividend
receivable, other receivables and cash and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity investments or loans and receivables.
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through consolidated
statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (coniinued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when
and only when, the Group’s obligations discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method. No
depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Investment properties (continueq)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Buildings on freehold land are depreciated over 40
years by equal annual installments.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 8%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicle 18%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

When the minimum lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or
estimated net realisable value.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE =

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers. Payments received from purchasers prior to
this stage are recorded as receipts in advance under
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Revenue from sales of held-for-trading investments is
recognised on a trade date basis.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD")) at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE#

(Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of the assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interest are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that has been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when
they relate to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case, the current
tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The key source of estimation uncertainty that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial information in the next financial year is
disclosed as follows:

Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are measured at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to Directors’ estimates
based on the prevailing market condition. The Group
has properties held for sale in Shanghai and Macau,
which exposes the Group to certain price risk. If
the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
impairment on the properties held for sale has to be
made. Management is optimistic about the prospect of
the Group'’s investment in the property sector and it has
been cautious in formulating and reviewing regularly the
Group’s business plan.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of
the tax varies amongst different jurisdictions in various
cities of the PRC and the Group has not finalised its
land appreciation tax calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
the land appreciation tax and its related income tax
provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation
tax based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will have
impact on the income tax provisions in the periods in
which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group'’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation technique that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of investment properties. If there
are changes in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of unobservable market data, such changes
will impact the fair value. Notes 6(c) and 17 provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

4. A TRERZZEERR

(%)

T b EE R

RS BR B IR ER - AT
FEEHRT RN EERENTREE
EREETAEE TR - MAEE HARHE
FE TR E R EE 7 2 R R E [T B
IR BB Bt FEE L
IR ER S E R LA SEREERA
EREAHE - AEERBEREHRE
fAET R L IR (AT - RS HIRGE R AT BE
BRIRNMNPIERN TR MxSFEEGH
E8 3t 75 7 755 1% (B8 ik 1wk i TR O H ) A T
SHBERBERTE -

AFEBRGEBRE

REBRET S - ARBBHEERRE
PR FEE -

RIEFTEERABZAFER  AREE
A] BE{SE P AT B2 T 35 U o fef I R 55 — AR
WABEAHER IAREREEER
F=NHEMETHE ARBESER
SN EMER A EARBRARIEE
(CRERERUPSEIPN S

RIEETREMEZ XA TER  AEBEER
BREIFABEEMBBIBE B ARE 24
B e FERBRESM S| 2]
BEEMSBBELEE ZEDKTEH
NFE-MF6(C)RITIRHEBFEARET
TREERBEAFEZEERN @A
BENERHRRZFAELR -

Annual Report 2015 FEFR 82



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fr B IR ER R 5E

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically by considering the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
When necessary, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt.

5.

EXERER

AEE Y BAREE G ERRALER 2 F
AEEDAS ARG RS BE(L
575 B AR S A 00 AR SRR BA B 2R = A
Y BRI BRI

AEBZERARBERRARRERZIESE
AEGED NEREEEITRA #EER
TR Al o

ARBEETEHRTEARE EFE
EBERBEARKARREENBERHEZ
[\ - NEBK RN B FER BBk
B BATHR BB R AR 0 A R BT R E DA
FEOEBREBEARE-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €@ TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =R T EEHR
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FETT
Financial assets Bk EE
Held-for-trading investments FEKRE 433,437 185,876
Loans and receivables (including ERREWER (BE
cash and cash equivalents) ReRRELEMEEE) 718,833 885,640
Available-for-sale investments AIHEHERE 334,880 338,910
Financial liabilities S =Ri
Amortised cost B SH A AR 10,376 10,395

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |5 £ @5 R /A )




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm O B 15 #R R B 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6. EMI A »

(b) Financial risks management (b) HEEREEEERBEK

objectives and policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, held-for-
trading investments, dividend receivable, other
receivables, cash and bank balances and trade
and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market Risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no significant
change to the Group's exposure to market risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risk. Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:

(i)  Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
which is a foreign currency other than
functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant
Group entities (see Note 21). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE—Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risks management
objectives and policies (continuea)

Market Risks (Continued)

()

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2014: Nil) appreciation/depreciation in
HKD against RMB.

o post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2015 would
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$16,121,000 (2014: Nil)

Interest rate risk

The Group has minimal interest rate risk as
most of the interest bearing financial assets
are bank deposits. As the Group does not
expect material fluctuation in interest rate
movement, the exposure to interest rate risk
is insignificant.

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks and closely
monitor the price changes.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

? RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED J |5 £ B R /A )
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risks management

objectives and policies (continuea)

Market Risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2014: 10%)
higher/lower:

o post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2015 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$36,192,000 (2014: approximately
HK$15,521,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments; and

° other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$33,488,000 (2014: approximately
HK$33,891,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

Credit Risks

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk, which will cause a financial
loss to the Group, arises from the carrying amount
of respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Besides concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks and
security brokers with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6. EMI A »

(b) Financial risks management (b) FEEREEEERBEK &)

objectives and policies (continuea)
Liquidity Risks

The Group expects to have sufficient funds to meet
its financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the

REBE SR

AEEARHAERMES RARE
HRENARYBER-

EEERDECARTE  AEH
EEMMREEERARRZIRS
NE e FERB NKFRBNARE
B EmEMRERESRERIN

effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group HE-AEEEREREREER
will consider raising bank borrowings when it is RITIEE

necessary.

Liquidity table HEEEEK

TRFVNAKRENTHBABZHRT
BRBBPBER - UERDIREARH
RABERERERMBRENRE
BEIZ RBERB SR E M HIET o

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay.

less than

3 months Total

DPR=M@EA et

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FExT
As at 31st December, 2015 R-ZZE—HF+=-HA=+—H

Trade and other payables FEH B 5 BR3k & B b FE T BR 3K 10,376 10,376
As at 31st December, 2014 R-ZE—WF+=-H=+—H

Trade and other payables BB B R R R H A R BR 3R 10,395 10,395
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EFITH &
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMITEAFEE

instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are REBEH DS T ERZREH R
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting HAEEFE NRIZEEHBB WM
period. The following table gives information about ETrTZEZ4a T EH 2 AT E (5
how the fair values of these financial instruments =T E M E R R A SR ) B
are determined (in particular, the valuation BE o

techniques and inputs used).

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with fair value
as at 31st December

Rt+t=A=+—H
BEBELTRAESZ
/\ 3z
A¥E Valuation
2015 2014 Fair value techniques

Financial assets —E—-RfF Z—ZF—M%  hierarchy and key inputs

HK$’000 HK$'000 fRER MR
MBEE TET THET  AFERK TE@MAHE
Held-for-trading 433,437 185,876 Level 1 Quoted prices in an

investments active market
e e WE RS 2 BB
Available-for-sale 334,880 338,910 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
investments active market

AHEEERE E—& RIERRT 5 2 RIE

768,317 524,786
At the end of the reporting period, the Group REpEHR REFBWEE H5E A
has no financial instruments measured at fair NEERRNZE_RE=HR 2T
value classified as Level 2 or 3 of the fair value BiEzemT A
hierarchy.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in PMEFE E—HREFE KM
both years. I 7 o
Except the financial assets that are measured iR B EEEUANTEEAE 28
at fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors BEEIN NRABEERE  Nigs
of the Company consider that the carrying B R N ER 2 B EE &I 7
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities BEZEREAEENFEEBE-

recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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7. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 7 RKREWRBEREA
AND REVENUE
2015 2014
—E-hEF —E—E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Sales of properties HEME 904 25,696
Leasing of properties ik ES 1,051 1,026
REVENUE PN 1,955 26,722
Sale proceeds from disposal of HEFERE ZHE WS
held-for-trading investments 372,545 291,639
Dividend income from Al ERE 2R B A
available-for-sale investments 19,118 20,856
Dividend income from FEREZRBEBA
held-for-trading investments 7,560 13,598
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM RE WS AR
OPERATIONS 401,178 352,815
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oHEHR

The Group’s operating and reportable segments, based
on information reported to the chief operating decision
makers, the Executive Directors of the Company, for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment are as follows:
Property Development - sales and leasing of properties
and Investment

Securities Tradingand -
Investment

dealings in held-for-trading
investments and available-
for-sale investments
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the accounting policies of
the reportable segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in Note 3. For details
of reconciliation of segment revenue to the Group's
revenue of HK$1,955,000 (2014: HK$26,722,000),
please refer to Note 7. Segment profit (loss) represents
the results of each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including depreciation of leasehold
land and building for corporate function, directors’
salaries, share of results of an associate and other
income. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) SHEER »
Property
Development Securities
and  Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MERR BHEEHE
kRE kRE&E #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT TAERT THERT
2015 —2-1F
Gross proceeds from operations  E& W HEEE
- segment revenue -2 ERA 1,955 399,223 401,178
Results E 4
Segment (loss) profit DR (BE)&H (2,071) 30,712 28,641
Other income Hablg A 20,909
Unallocated expenses TToBERY (21,729)
Share of results of an associate NN 141,306
Profit before taxation BT AR A 169,127
2014 —T-mF
Gross proceeds from operations & W HEE
- segment revenue - ERA 26,722 326,093 352,815
Results 4
Segment profit Gk hig ] 9,419 54,257 63,676
Other income Hplg A 13,949
Unallocated expenses ¥ HERX (8,863)
Share of results of an associate FEIEB & AR R 143,601
Profit before taxation B 7% Al i A 212,363

BB ABEEEBERTPNFRERAZ
EHAXTRIN FHED T2 ST BURHE
MIEESATil 2 ANE B 2 ST ERR AR - 5
58 U A B2 K &£ B Uk A1,955,00058 7T (—
T — 4 : 26,722,000/ 7 ) 2 RIS
BT - 2 fERF (BB ESSEE
BMRBETARRITHARN (BIERE
CENECHELHREFZNE) &
EHH - BB EQARIEENEMIA -
MR ITESREE RSB REEFT
fZatEe
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 8. oEEH®
Assets and Liabilities EENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UTAERNERILRRES BRSO 2 EENR
liabilities by reportable segment: BEZH:
Property
Development Securities
and  Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MERRE HEEE
kgE kRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET THERT
2015 —E-EREF
Assets EE
Segment assets DIEE 56,037 782,735 838,772
Interest in an associate R—FREE QR 2w 859,425
Unallocated assets NTDIEEE 721,303
Consolidated total assets IREREE 2,419,500
Liabilities &fE
Segment liabilities DIEEE 18,962 522 19,484
Unallocated liabilities NTFHEEE 157,234
Consolidated total liabilities memats 176,718
2014 —E-MF
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 67,247 528,174 595,421
Interest in an associate R—REEE R R 2 xS 928,564
Unallocated assets NTDIEE 890,120
Consolidated total assets IREREE 2414105
Liabilities &f&
Segment liabilities DB E 19,341 1,339 20,680
Unallocated liabilities AT HiEEE 188,975
Consolidated total liabilities mERARE 209,655
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Assets and Liabilities (continuea)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than leasehold land and buildings of
corporate function, interest in an associate,
deferred tax assets, cash and bank balances,
dividend receivable and other receivables and
prepayments of corporate function; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other payables and accruals of corporate function.

8. 7EEMR»

BEERBE®
ETEESEE P EREMSEEIR

e KBIFLEVREcHEELHRET
R—RBEARED BEERRAER
B BRERIRTES  RBBBRERIE
X EE 2 H Al B U RR K R FAR 3R
BN B EEBDEESRED
B R

e KBREMNMRE BELHMBEAENMED
Eee 2 Bt AR R IRER IR
S A RBEHANEESMENER -

Other Information Hi &R
Property
Development Securities
and Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MERR REEH
KERE RERE fct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THERT FET
Amounts included in the measure of 5t Azt E 2 48 5% T
segment profit (loss) or segment (BRI EEE
assets: B FKIE -
2015 —2-4F
Depreciation of property, ¥ BEREREBNE
plant and equipment 16 - 16
Gain on disposalfwritten off property, H& MWL  BE K
plant and equipment s 4 - 4
2014 —TmF
Depreciation of property, ME -BERRERE
plant and equipment 160 - 160
Gain on disposal/written off HE/MEME - BE R
property, plant and equipment Rz W 222 - 222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Revenue From Major Products and

Services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from

—RAFEt-A=1+—HLFE

NS

TEER »

FEEMRRBVRA

UTHASEEXEEMERBEAZD

its major products and services: #r

2015 2014
—E-fHE — g4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of properties HEMSE 904 25,696
Leasing of properties nbisky/ES 1,051 1,026
1,955 26,722

Geographical Information wESEER

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong,

Macau and the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is based
on the location of properties sold and leased out and
information about its non-current assets (excluding
deferred tax assets and available-for-sale investments)
by geographical location of the assets and operation of
the associate are detailed below:

REBEZEBUNES BFIRHE-

AEBEUAMEHERMBE AR Z
HINHEBRAFIINT - ERREEME

i (B E QA

LEME) B D

D2 3F

REEE (TEREEREEE KA
ERE)EHITFINRAT

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HINHEWA FRBEE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Hf —FT-MmOFE ZE-&F — M
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAERT FET FHER FET
Hong Kong BB - - 604 =
Macau el - 25,556 35,338 36,234
The PRC M 1,955 1,166 859,431 928,596
1,955 26,722 895,373 964,830
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. oEEH®
Information about Major Customers FTEEZFER
For the year ended 31st December, 2015, no revenue HE_ZT—AF+_A=+—HILFE"
from transactions with a single external customer v =S N (- S v | N oW N
amounted to 10% or more of the Group'’s revenue. EBIW A Z10%3 A | o
For the year ended 31st December, 2014, one customer 2T NF+-_A=1+—HBILtFE"
from the Property Development and Investment TAMEERRLEEEYEN—REREZ
segment, which had sales of HK$23,256,000, $HE W A A23,256,0008 7T © (AN E 42
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. YT A Z10% LA F o
OTHER INCOME 9. HUA
Other income included interest income of H b U A B3 I E Ug A 18,834,000/ JT
HK$18,834,000 (2014: HK$13,526,000). (ZZE—PH4£F: 13,526,000/ 7T ) °
. TAXATION 10. BiIE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: NHEARE IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEMH 2,080 1,605
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI 2,436 3,189
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) H B £ b IE B 178 16
PRC Withholding Tax A B S AT 8,509 18,588
Macau Complementary Tax BPIPTIS R AT 376 -
(Overprovision) underprovision MAEFE (BF) TR
in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH (5) -
PRC Withholding Tax o AR B AT (9,049) -
Macau Complementary Tax BPIPTS R T 6 =
4,531 23,398
Deferred tax credit (Note 25) BEERIEER % (FizE25) (9,994) (4,231)
Total tax (credit) charge for the year REERIE (KE) A BE (5,463) 19,167
The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: BEE_E—AFt+=-_A=1+—HItFE
16.5%) of the assessable profit for the year ended 31st ERNEHRATRAZHESEEERN
December, 2015. i F#916.5% (ZZF—M4F :16.5% ) °
Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% on the SRPSFr S 7 Bl TR FE R B UL A B9 12% 1%
taxable income. U o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EHZE—Z

10. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—RAFEt-A=T—HLFE

10. HIE (@)

The income tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the year
ended 31st December, 2015 is 25% (2014: 25%).

During the year 2015, deferred tax credit of
HK$1,444,000 (2014: deferred tax charge of
HK$14,360,000) has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in respect of
the undistributed profits earned during the year by the
Group’s PRC associate attributable to the Group that
are subject to withholding tax upon the distribution
of such profits to the shareholders outside the PRC.
A withholding tax of HK$8,509,000 was paid on the
dividend received from the Group’s PRC associate
for the year ended 31st December, 2015 (2014:
HK$18,588,000).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the

RHABEZHBAREZ T —HF+—
A=1+—HILFEZFE a"R X R25% (=
T4 :25%) o

RZE—hFE GEBEEXRTERR

1,444,ooo,am_URIE#i§%(:$ m
O IR T TR TE R 214,360,000 7T) ° Uit
NBEBRAEEREEAEEERR 2B EQ
AN A FEREZ KD @A - m A+
B 5% SNIR BRIk B B ) B B N 2 FN K
M- BE_T—AF+_A=+—HLF
B AEERBEUAEBEFREH 2B EAQ
A9k 2 B B B 2 4548,509,000/% 7T 41
B (—Z—PO4 : 18,588,000/ 7T ) °

REREZRBARAXRES %EEE%ZE%%H

profit before taxation (excluding share of results of an B (REiEEGBE AR XE) 2 Y
associate) per the consolidated statement of profit or BRANR -
loss as follows:
2015 2014
—E—1F —ZE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation (excluding share of K& BIE F (1B 5 & 1G
results of an associate) i NCIES =) 27,821 68,762
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income A B 1b ZE PR 1S A IR B R 25%
Tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (ZZF—HF :25%)
AR ZBIA 6,955 17,191
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAMBIWAZ
tax purpose MG E (8,415) (12,394)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for a1 *)%SE 2z
tax purpose MG E 3,771 1,250
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERR fRIEEETﬁszW%% 4,455 237
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL ARERZ
not recognised MIEEE (290) (1,493)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEERE (9,048) —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries E&ﬁﬂﬂ}fﬁéﬁmézﬁﬁg
operating in other jurisdictions NCIRNGE R vl -7 (1,625) —
PRC LAT AR £ b IR E AR 178 16
Deferred tax on undistributed R BB S N Rl 2 R D IR AT
earnings of a PRC associate EAZEERIE (1,444) 14,360
Tax (credit) charge for the year REERIE (HKE) T H (5,463) 19,167

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 25.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FEEF
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$\’OCp
FERT FET
Profit for the year has been arrived FEOEMBE MR (FFA) -
at after charging (crediting):
Staff costs BITARA 2,941 2,635
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K& Fll5+ &) = 3 44 49
Total staff costs (including Directors’ BT AMEE
emoluments) (BREEEH:) 2,985 2,684
Auditor’'s remuneration = AN & 1,047 1,023
Depreciation of property, Y E MR EITE
plant and equipment \ 1,047 1,040
Gain on disposal/written off property, HE MEmE - BE R
plant and equipment = Wa (4) (222)
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EENEEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director HExE—_EZ—FHEFE+-_B=+—HIt
for the year ended 31st December, 2015 are set FEEMNKEMNFEZES 20
out below: T:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Total
and other scheme emoluments
Name of Director Fees benefits contributions 2015
FH 2R BRHKEN —F-IfF
Esng e HipEF  FrEzHtR [k
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TERT THERT THET
Non-executive Chairman  FE#{TEfE
Ge Peijian -8 - - - -
Executive Directors BITES
Hsu Feng %" M - - - -
Albert Tong aRaG] - 921 18 939
Wang Fahua TAE - - - -
Fan Suxia BRE - 926 20 946
Resigned Director HIIEE
Chen Ganijin PR & 83 - - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun AOE - - - -
Independent Non-executive B FHTES
Directors
Liang Jung-chi RRE 82 - - 82
Zhang Hong Bin =/} 108 - - 108
Sit Hing Kwok E3den 102 - - 102
292 1,847 38 2,177
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. BEEREEMS o
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director HE—_E—MWME+—_ABA=+—HIt
for the year ended 31st December, 2014 are set FEENSENTFTSESZT 2Mam
out below: T
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Total
and other scheme  emoluments
Name of Director Fees benefits  contributions 2014
Bl ALK RIKEN —T-MF
B4 we H@H  sHEZ 4R & 4258
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
Chen Ganjin PR 248 = = = =
Hsu Feng ® M - - - -
Albert Tong i = 871 17 888
Ge Peijian B - - - -
Fan Suxia EEE = 82 = 82
Resigned Directors BHIES
Ding Lei T & - - - -
Gu Yiwei AZE - - - -
Xu Mei W - 544 9 553
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun RIUE - - - -
Independent Non-executive &Y JE#TES
Directors
Liang Jung-chi RERE 79 = = 79
Zhang Hong Bin BRI 106 - = 106
Sit Hing Kwok izt 100 = = 100
285 1,497 26 1,808

No Director waived any emoluments for either year.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Group. The
Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as
Directors of the Company.

Other than the Directors listed above, there was no
senior management entitled to any emoluments for
either year.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || SO Sk BB RR A )

1A R B 4 2 79 158 48 25 28 AU ER (1)
N

FRATEZCME T ERBKER
BAEEAEEEBAMREHENRE M
X LM BIFRTEEZME
TERBREIESARAESREMHN
AR S A e

RAESFEAR Bk Dl E SN W
=R EEABWEE A -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
7 O B RS ER R Bfi 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME »
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEESHFMAL
During the year, the five highest paid individuals RAFER AEBRAUSZSH A
of the Group included three (2014: two) Directors TERE=ZR(ZE—EOF - WA)E
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis ERHEIHEEREXATHR
presented above. For the remaining two (2014: M- TREBE(ZE—NF:=4)
three) highest paid individuals, their individual BEmFMATEEZHFEM BB
emoluments do not exceed HK$1,000,000 each 1,000,000 7c  EMlEFF BT ¢
and are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-1F e Sief 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and e - 2R R E AR A
other benefits 736 853
Retirement benefits scheme RRRRAE S Z K
contributions = 15
736 868
13. DIVIDEND 13. RS
The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend EERRRNBE-_TE R+ A
of HK$0.02 (2014: HK$0.02) per share amounting =t+t—HBLEFEEZREBREFARKO02
to approximately HK$52,171,000 for the year ended BIL(ZE—EF:0028L) - &HY
31st December, 2015, subject to approval by the 52,171,000/ 7T - MEBFF IR R A FEfE AR 3R
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BERE LHE - HAEE-
meeting.
In June 2015, a dividend of HK$0.02 per share REE—RAFAABRRBEERE-_ZT—F
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 in T AT —HLEFEZREREER
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final 0.02/8 704 £ 4952,171,000/8 7T T AL 2R »
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2014.
In June 2014, a dividend of HK$0.02 per share RZE—NFSABRBEE_T—=F
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 in T AT —HLEFEZREREEGR
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final 0.02/8 704 £ 4952,171,000/8 7T T AL 2R »

dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2013.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2015 of approximately HK$174,126,000 (2014:
HK$192,578,000) and on the number of 2,608,546,511
(2014: 2,608,546,511) shares in issue during the year.

BRAER

EREARFTIBEAEREZE_T—H
F+_A=+—HLEFEARRREEF
A ANEAEE T 49174,126,000/8 7T ( =&
—PO4F : 192,578,000/ 7T ) R F A Z B3
1T B% #2,608,546,5118 (=& — /O 4

2,608,546,5110% )5t & -

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there A EE IR N AR Sl B
was no dilutive ordinary share outstanding during both RS W ERY SRS R AT
years.
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERFZHE
Furniture
Land and and Motor
buildings equipment vehicle Total
TkEF  BRRRE AE okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TR THT
cosT B
At 1st January, 2014 RZZ—WE—A—R 9,598 1,239 1,062 11,899
Disposal & = (64) (793) (857)
Written-off G - (55) = (99)
Exchange realignment B X R - (3) (25) (28)
At 31st December, 2014 NZE-NE+-A=+—H 9,598 1,117 244 10,959
Addition ANE = = 755 755
Disposal e = (18) = (18)
Written-off i - (17) (244) (261)
Exchange realignment B 3 B - (3) - 3)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZ—RAE+ZA=1—H 9,598 1,079 755 11,432
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st January, 2014 R-ZE—mE—[—H 1,784 441 651 2876
Provided for the year FNEE 708 190 142 1,040
Elimination on written-off/disposal R385,/ tH & B %144 - (83) (559) (642)
Exchange realignment B 3 B - (3) (15) (18)
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE—ME+ZA=1—H 2,492 545 219 3,256
Provided for the year FNEE 707 189 151 1,047
Elimination on written-off/disposal R385,/ tH & B %44 - (33) (219) (252)
Exchange realignment B 3 B - (4) = (4)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZE—RhE+ZA=1—H 3,199 697 151 4,047
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-HEE+-A=+-H 6,399 382 604 7,385
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE—WE+ZA=1—H 7,106 572 25 7,703
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

(Continued)

For the land and buildings, within which carrying value
of HK$169,000 (2014: HK$183,000) are freehold land
and buildings and HK$6,230,000 (2014: HK$6,923,000)
are leasehold land and buildings under short-term
lease. All land and buildings are located outside Hong

Kong.

GENERAL INFORMATION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries at 31st December, 2015 are as

follows:

Paid up issued

gen O\

fm O B 15 $R R B 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

15. ¥ - WERRE »)

16.

M REFmME  BREEE + 169,000
BT (ZZE—P4 : 183,000/8 7T ) AFE
KA FEME 2 i RIEF 16,230,000/
7L (ZZ—PU4F : 6,923,00078 7T ) A5 H
MHOFAzHET W REF -FRAELTHE

BFHMRE BRI

MEARZ—RER

R_IE-—RF+_A=+—HBHMER

Az FHBWT

ordinary Proportion of
Place of share capital/ issued capital/registered
incorporation registered capital and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
\ #RERA ARRRE
SEMALL R LERRE, BRTBA/
WEARERE ggw AfER AMELRRREL X TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE B3
% %
Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
REREARAA 30 28T REEK
Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
RBABARES 1ET REEK
Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEERAERAA & 28T REEK
Crown Map International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
30 1T REEK
Forty Enterprises Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
BELEBERDA 55 20,000/ 7T REEK
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
& 10,000 7T REEK
Jia Feng (Macau) Companhia Macau MOP25,000 - 100  Property holding
Limitada
8 (RF)BRAA R 25,000/2F9% NERE
Joker Investments Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
BEREFRAA ¥ 20,0007 7T REER
Kingpart Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
services
YUREFRRA B 10,000 7T RREEAE AR
Paringa Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
REHRBREE IV REER

Annual Report 2015 FEFR 100



101

16. GENERAL INFORMATION OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i © B 15 ¥R R B X

WR 7
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HIIFE

Paid up issued

16. B AR 2 —MRER »)

ordinary Proportion of
Place of share capital/ issued capital/registered
incorporation registered capital and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
\ HRERS AR RHE
SMALR LERRE, BRTRE/
WEARERE ik AfER AMEERRREL X TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HEE i
% %
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BREXERALA 30 10,000% 7T REER
Plus Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Inactive
HEERRE 30 BT EXHB
Rivera Holdings (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 60  Property development
- Sociedade de Investimentos E and investment
Fomento Predial, Limitada .
N8 CRF) BERAA RF 100,000/ 79 % NEERLIRE
Rivera Management (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of secretarial
and administrative
services
mER (F%)BRAR BE 10,000/ 7T REHE RITBRS
Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
services
NG (RBA)BRAT 0 10,000/ 7T BRAL IR A RS
Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBEARS I REER
Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
securities trading
hERARAH Bk 4,000,000% 7 REERRESFEE
SOFIL - Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40  Property holding and
Industrial de Macau, Limitada investment
BRI TXERERAR R 2,500,000 9% NEBBEREE
Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BEERARAA 5} 10,000/ 7T RERK
LBRBEEXBRAF PRC US$16,290,000 = 93.53  Property development
(Shanghai Boulevard Real and management
Estate Co., Limited) (Note a)
TEBREEXBRAR (Mta) i 16,290,000% 7T NEERRER
LRREEAERARAR PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Inactive
(Note b) (FffzEb) FE AR EEG
50,000,0007T

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED J | SO S BB BR S



16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note a: The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in the PRC.

Note b: The subsidiary is a foreign equity limited company
established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at any
time during the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The cost and carrying value of the Group’s investment
property at 31st December, 2015 and 2014 were
HK$28,563,000. The investment property is a piece of
freehold land located in Macau.

The development controls of the investment property
are subject to change with reference to revised planning
directives under the “Urban redevelopment programme
of the Northern District of Taipa Area” drawn up by the
Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau in
November 2013. Should the said plan be implemented,
there will be an increase in plot ratio of the investment
property and the fair value of the Group’s investment
property at 31st December, 2015 was estimated as
HK$627,000,000 (2014: HK$697,500,000).

The investment property is categorised as Level 3.
There was no transfer into and out of Level 3 during
the year. The fair value has been arrived at using direct
comparison approach carried out by an independent
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation
was determined by a reference to comparable
sales transactions with due allowance for estimated
construction costs that will be expended to carry out
the development and the estimated developer’'s profit
margin. There has been no change of the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

The highest and best use for the investment property is
development of residential property and the Group will
explore feasible plans to fully realise the development
potential of the investment property.

16.

17

B AT 2 —MRER @

Kiita - WHB AR A —REFBEKILAH
ShEBERE-

Hiith : LB AR A —REH BRI
BARRAA-

& P B ] R HA R 3K F A (AT B
BEEAIARER CEHES-

BREWF

REB I REMER-_TE—FAFER_-ZT
—NE+-"A=+t—HZXAKREEE
#528,563,000/8 7T ° Z I B W A —RAL
FORFIAKA R E 2 LH -

ZREVECERREHALRBM it
IEHPRN - ZE—=F+—A%Igz
(KT RATL AT EIERT) BT Z
RIEETREIFE R T IAES) - i Lt 85
AEBIT ZEMESEMLELE M
R-ZE—RAF+-_F=+—8 AEEK
B 2 ~FEME /627,000,000 7T
(ZZ — /M4 : 697,500,000/ 7T ) °

BREMENBERE=R -FALBE=H
BASE L o NP ETIRERSE B ERE
B2EUAEMRBZERLEAEE -
BREEDSEAELRZIHER S
R ARRBER AT RERNSTIEEE
BB ARG ERE ERFBRM
BE - ERZAERMEEEFELEE
o

REMEZBESMRERERERES
WME AEEBRAATZAENERE
RaRBNE2BRE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—AF+ _A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. REFE N R 2 =

2015 2014

—E—-1F —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Cost of investment in an associate R E N a2 E KA 214,224 214,224

Share of post-acquisition profits, J& {5 W B 12 5 )

net of dividends received (BB WA B 595,879 624,761
Exchange difference arising from BREBMENRREEY

translation of an associate EH =% 49,322 89,579

859,425 928,564

Dividend receivable from an associate NIl 3N - 185,878

Details of the associate of the Group at 31st December,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

REBR -_E—RER_ZT—NE+—
A=+—BzHERRZFBHT:

Percentage
of interest in
registered
capital
and voting
Place of power
Form of registration Paid up indirectly
business and registered held by the Principal
Name of associate structure operation capital Company activities
EAR B
KEEMES
HMEZR iR
BENRER EBEBER R i B BEEMER REELEE IEER
Shanghai Zhangjiang Sino-foreign PRC RMB370,830,000 37% Property
Micro-electronics equity joint development
Port Co. Ltd. venture and management
FBRINEFE FoEERR i AR¥ 3% MEERNER
ARADA 370,830,0007T

The principal activities of the associate are property
development and management and it is the Group’s
strategic investment in Shanghai, especially in
Zhangijiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New Area. The
associate enables the Group to enhance exposure to
the property market in Shanghai.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 &2 —Z—HAF+ _A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. REEE NTI 2R »)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBZBERNR 2P HERBMAT
Group’s associate is set out below:
The associate is accounted for using the equity method KRG BHREBE ERFAEREA
in these consolidated financial statements. B
2015 2014
—T—HF _—T—@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets MBEE
Properties under development BRPYE 2,617,519 2,290,953
Cash and bank balances HE NIRTTA R 1,045,529 1,161,974
Other current assets HimE & E 209,447 325,942
Total current assets BREEE 3,872,495 3,778,869
Non-current assets FRBEE 933,910 1,186,972
Current liabilities mEBAE
LAT payable e b3 (E R 601,071 644,177
Other current liabilities HEmmehaE 1,201,016 919,420
Total current liabilities BREBE 1,802,087 1,563,597
Non-current liabilities JEmBEEE 681,547 892,612
Net assets BEFRE 2,322,771 2,509,632
Group's share of net assets of A& B FELEEE A A
the associate BEFE 859,425 928,564
Revenue WA 330,213 1,078,337
Profit for the year FEm 381,909 388,111
Other comprehensive expense FEHMEHERZ
for the year (108,803) (64,549)
Total comprehensive income for the year /& & WS /2 %8 273,106 323,562
Dividend received from FRERBE QR ZRE
the associate during the year 170,188 185,878
Group's share of results of FEAEEE(LEERT]
the associate for the year LA 141,306 143,601
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—RAFEt-A=1T—HLFE

18.

19.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continuea)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

18. REt&E N T 2R o)

it B E R B N AR A M IS IR R AT
RZNB SRR 2 R (E 2 ik

2015 2014

—E-AfF — g F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Net assets of the associate BN R EEFE 2,322,771 2,509,632
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEREBERRZ

interest in the associate E R 37% 37%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEBEREE N E 2

in the associate HEEREE 859,425 928,564

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December,
2015 comprise equity securities listed in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$334,880,000 (2014:
HK$338,910,000).

At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of these
investments have been determined by reference to the
quoted market prices.

The investments represent 11.46% (2014: 11.39%) of
the ordinary shares of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL")
which is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and listed on the Stock Exchange.

? RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || 3 @5 R AT

19. AMEHERE

R_E—RAF+_A=+—H A[#HtH
EREBREES LT ZRAES2
%8 #7334,880,000/8 0 ( =& — /4 4 :
338,910,000/ 7T ) °

R ERR - TR HEREHYUARTF
BHE - ZEREZATFERLX2EMSER
BmEE-

HEAHEEREAFESESEER
rEl([ZEER]  —RERSHSEM
RS EBIRA Tz AE) E@R2
11.46% ( ZZF— P04 :11.39% ) °
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20. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

21.

Held-for-trading investments represent equity securities
listed in Hong Kong.

The analysis of held-for-trading investments at 31st
December, 2015 and 2014 by industry classification is
set out below:

20. FERE

FEREREBTB LM ZBARE S -

e

RNR_E—RFER_ET—NUF+-_A=+—
B FEREBITESBZOMM T :

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZET-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Properties and construction HhEE IR AR S 287,200 103,917
Information technology BB 49,115 16,853
Real estate investment trust BHEREETES 42,288 10,592
Conglomerates e 40,032 -
Financials S REE 14,802 11,273
Energy I ES - 34,496
Materials R 2 - 8,745
433,437 185,876

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The Group’s bank balances carry interest at prevailing
deposit rates which range from 0.05% to 5.70% per
annum (2014: 0.001% to 2.86% per annum).

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities (i.e. HKD) to which
they relate:

21. RERWPITEER

REBE ZRITHEERE T T0.05FE E5.70E
(ZZ—M4F:0.001EE2.862) 2 ]IT
TFHRFFET B -

ERERBITERABRE NN —ER
BHENSER ZEBLIFZFERBAR
HEZhEE® (AET) :

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE-HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

RMB AR 386,126 -
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22. BN E 5 R HAEN KRR
KRFERKE

RN E SR E A AR R IR
HABRENEZRN MERREHR

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

Included in trade and other payables and accruals are
trade payables and their aged analysis as at the end of

the reporting period is as follows: ZEEEBSTWT
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Over 1 year HBil—F 24 28
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
Number of Carrying
shares value
43 8 B RREE
HK$’000
FET
Authorised EE
At 1st January, 2014 RZT—ME—H—H
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each —EBRER
H{E0.05/8 7T 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31st December, 2014 and RZT—MF
31st December, 2015 (Note) +-A=+—-BK
—E-hFt+ZA=t—H
(Hit)
Issued and fully paid ERTRBR
At 1st January, 2014 RZZE—mE—H—H
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each —Eakek
M {E0.05/8 7T 2,608,546,511 130,427
Transfer from share premium and REE L EER B
capital redemption reserve B B AR &2
upon abolition of par value BEAREOFERE - 311,817
At 31st December, 2014 and RZZE—MmEF
31st December, 2015 +ZA=+—Hk
—E-RF+=A=+—H
— Ordinary shares with no par value (Note) ~ —EE{E LB (H:E) 2,608,546,511 442 244

Note: The Company has no authorised share capital and its

Hit: BEE (RAEG) (F622F )=

shares have no par value from the commencement T—PUE=H=HEQHHEERE &N
date of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) AR EETERAREROTBEAETR
on 3rd March, 2014. & o

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |3 @5 R AT
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24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group and the Company entered
into the following significant transactions with related
and connected parties:

(a) Compensation of key management

24, BEATRBEIRS

AEBREARBERAFEEBFEALR
BETBATEENRS:

(@) SREEAEME

personnel
The remuneration of Directors during the year was REBEEMWES T :
as follows:
2015 2014
—¥—HF —FOF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term benefits 55 HA & A 2,139 1,782
Post-employment benefits RIRER 38 26
2,177 1,808

Emoluments payable to the Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board or its
committee with reference to market terms,
individual responsibilities and performance.

(b) Sharing of administrative expense

A substantial shareholder of the Company together
with her close family members control TGL
and that substantial shareholder has significant
influence over the Company. Accordingly, TGL is
considered as a related party of the Company. The
Company has entered into an arrangement with
TGL, pursuant to which the Group was allowed
to use the office premises and administrative
resources of TGL. In return, the Company is
required to share an attributable portion of the
administrative cost of TGL on a cost basis.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the
administrative cost of TGL shared by the Company
amounted to approximately HK$4,866,000 (2014
HK$4,268,000). As at 31st December, 2015, no
outstanding balance (2014: Nil) was owed to TGL.

Under the Listing Rules, TGL is an associate
of a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction but is exempted from
disclosure and approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

XNHFARREZTOMEIHRES
REET 2% 882 EM5EH 5
AF - ERIALTZBE kKRR &

(b) ZHERTHEH
pEEBHARR—ERRR KL
HT e s Mm% T 2RERE AR
NREBBEAZE #HU - ZREH
BRSARNRAZBEANL KRR A]
i =S VAR 7l J: AN
SEHEEERSREEZHAE
ERTHER - MARM  ANARA
UL IR R ED YE5 R S BT
ERz—BMn-

RBEE-_FT—RAF+=-_A=+—H
FE  ARRDLHSEEE 21T
& #)/54,866,0000 7T ( —ZF—M
% :4,268,000870) - R_ZE—HF
+-—A=+—HB - ARQAYERN
GEEBEMRE(ZE—WF:
) o

RE(EHRAD  ZEEERAR
A2 MUEERRIBBEAL A
EXSBRIFEMERD HER
B (EWHRAND) 2R Rt E

ZRRRE °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ—F—AF+_A=1+—HILtFE

24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Trade and other payables and
accruals

As at 31st December, 2015, included in the
consolidated financial statements under
trade and other payables and accruals, was
an amount of approximately HK$10,274,000
(2014: HK$10,274,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder with significant influence over
a subsidiary of the Company. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

25. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised by the Group and movement thereon during
the current and prior reporting periods:

24 BEATRBEAIRS @

(c) ENEZR  HAEMIRK
RFERFIE

—RAF+=-A=+—8”" E
?v?éﬁﬁi‘%#ﬁ%ZF1ﬁf’f%ﬁEm
fhET AR R R FBIR B - B — %
#910,274,000 T (=& — m$
10,274,000/ 70 ) B FE AR
ELIEPN ﬂTﬁﬁéﬁwazaH
MRAR R A FRIE - X ERIA B ERE
BB K EE EERE -

25, RIEFIE (EE)BEE

ATRRAREHRARBEREHRAR
SEEHACELENE (EE)BEBERHE
K%Ej]

Undistributed
earnings of
Tax effect on PRC’s
LAT associate Total
H
T EER 2 BENR2
HBEE RO REBR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT THERT
At 1st January, 2014 R-—Z—mE—F—H (17,385) 61,237 43,852
(Credited) charged to consolidated ~R#&F&EBZEE (FFA) Mk
statement of profit or loss (3) 14,360 14,357
Credited to consolidated statement  J&{< F1 B A% 2 40 81 i S
of profit or loss upon the PRC SFAREERE
withholding tax became payable - (18,588) (18,588)
Exchange realignment B 5 38 B 415 - 415
At 31st December, 2014 R-E—mE+=-F=1+—H (16,973) 57,009 40,036
Credited to consolidated statement  R4r& Bz EATA
of profit or loss (41) (1,444) (1,485)
Credited to consolidated statement 37 < A B % 8. 0 4 7% B
of profit or loss upon the PRC STALREBRE
withholding tax paid - (8,509) (8,509)
Exchange realignment BE 5, 8 B 769 - 769
At 31st December, 2015 R-—B-A%f+=A=+-H (16,245) 47,056 30,811

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |3 @5 R AT
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DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

25.

EEHE (EE)EE @

MU RERAEMIEZEEHBLE %D
G CNE

2015 2014

—E-hfF —E—FE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Deferred tax assets BEHRIEEE (16,245) (16,973)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBEE 47,056 57,009
30,811 40,036

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$80,212,000
(2014: HK$62,990,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$1,248,000
that will expire on or before 31st December, 2018
(2014: HK$1,911,000 that will expire on or before 31st
December, 2017). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 1st June, 2012 (the
‘2012 Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the
primary purpose to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest
(“Invested Entity”). Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board, the 2012
Scheme shall be valid and effective till 31st May, 2022.
After the expiry of such valid period, no further options
will be offered or granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options
to (i) any employee or proposed employee (whether
full time or part time) of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity, including any executive director of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii)
any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any customer of or supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any

26.

AR HASR - AN E 1] A /R 8 R AR
2 AAFHIEEEA A80,212,000/%8 T (=
T — P04 : 62,990,000/ 7T) © A K 3R
2 g ) BE DA TEORD - 3 4R ph B TR B 1B RE AR
AEERBEE - AR EEBBERE
BR-_E—NE+-_A=+—B=2H]
B HY 7 &5 18 491,248,000 T ( — & — I
F:1911,0008 TR —+tF+=
A=+—HsZaE ) - M EsE T
MR HR 4 EE o

BT E

AARBEBE-_TE——F,A—H@EBH
REREM—EHEREFSE (22 —=
FHE]) RY—_B——FHENTE
ERMRAMEHRZ ALTHAEE KA
SEFEBEMRE EMEE ([FIEE
B ) 2 ERMEL BB E - WA QR
VWEERRACRERIXEETRTE
RERIFZETE — B —F:EBAN
E-T-—FRA=1+—HIt - REXH
[EmEETEBITRER PR HEBR
BT —FHENGREEME S
HESEEEmA R -

RE-_S-—FH3 EF/RAMUATA
TROBAGE : () ARBEEMKE AR
ERMRERE EMEEHERE (T
wmEBEERRE) BRAKELAKER
BRI E S 2 T MATES 3
(i) REBEEAK B R R R AERTIRE #
BZEMFENTES (BEBUIFERTE
=) (i) NEBEMKE R BHAEM
TR BB 2 AR PR AN KB M
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. BRRESTE »

Invested Entity; or (iv) any adviser or consultant of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted under the
2012 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 260,854,651
shares, being 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at 31st December, 2015,
unless shareholders’ approval of the Company has
been obtained. The total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further
grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit must
be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option
must be made within 28 days from the date on which
such offer is made with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a
consideration for the grant thereof. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not be more than 10 years
commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The subscription price of a share of
the Company in respect of any option that may be
granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,

111//RNWAW&MM&LWEDM@%E%@@E

RERBISREMAIRERBREEY K
RIS < R : S (iv) NREBEMKER
AR E RS 2 R H AL
A 3 (v) AMARKEEAKERERMAER
BHRBIRHIR FEIEMRMXEL
Efa] A LS sl(vi) REBERIKE
RE KA ERB ZERBRR A
SEEMAKE QB ATIRERE
BITEMESF2EMBAA

BRIEEARNGIREZIE  BRIE-T——
FHEAREZEREMEITZAAF
%15 B = PR RE 4B 241 7] 18 18260,854,651
B —ZE—RAF+_A=+—HBARQ
RIZEEITRHDBEZ10% - BH2HEE
FEHEEYEREZ A LEM+=@A
N ERRBERZERE(REBITE
M RITER ) FUAITE M7 R EET
ZARRRIRMDBE - NSRBI T BIRE
EAZARBEBITRMDEE 21% ([E
BIERR]) o A2 EE BT L BEE 7
ERRZ BB  RIZALSREEARRDRIRE
A HibE MEBSEEREBBAL
HEES LRERZE-

ARANARRER LB RE A £
“tNABRREERABRE X RARQE
XM1BT ERER TEREZRE:
SWRIBERRRD - BEREN EEERE
EREE AR 1T EZBF T EER
H R B HARE AT B 1 4F -

REEZRZAREMREBBBLERS
RHERTRESSN W ERA ERETE
ZAILABANRRERA RE-F—=
FE BN FRENERMBRENS AR
AERENNABERHEER2EE
E o EZRBBETFEROERRLEK
BER (WAREXR)EBMXMER®M
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

save that such price will not be less than the higher
of (i) closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of granting the option, which must be a business
day and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of granting the option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the 2012 Scheme during the year ended
31st December, 2015 and 2014. No options were
outstanding under the 2012 Scheme at 1st January,
2015 and 31st December, 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
November 2002. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at the specified rate
under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions paid and payable to the MPF Scheme
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective
state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local government. The
employer and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under rules of the schemes. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
elected to receive scrip dividends of approximately
HK$17,482,000 (2014: Nil) in lieu of cash dividends from
the Group's available-for-sale investments in TGL.

26. IBIRESTE o)

BRI R BRI 2 Wi B K (i) EE
ERBEREBREAPIAES XA
B X P B ME R PSR R R B W
Bz¥H8 MEZRSE -

BE-ZZT——F:8 RNEBEE-_F—1F
M _E—NF+_A=+—HIEFER"
WEEBRER L BT FE R
BE—ZE——F+#8 R=-_Z—R2F—A
—BE-_ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 1%
BIEARITEZ B

27. RIREFETE

AEER —_ZTZT_F+— ARE GRHIKE
RIETEEIEY) 2E—BEBHIERTE
TEEI([RESTE]) - REBERFEZ
BEAAKEZEENRTFA XH—B
VERARESHAEE - RIFBIE DT
2R BEIREEHEEERBRES
FHEIFTAM L RAER R

RiZABaRINR 2R B8 2 f
ROEASRERBESTERANTHZ
LEREMREMN TFRESTE 2 HRe

AEBzFEEB Y RER M BFE
w2 BREEAEHRFRKBAE S 2
B - RIFFERA BEXREEHER
FmFezETADLELHRK - NEE
HBRZEFERNENFTE 2B ERE
HET A (R

28. TEHFHERFH

BE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—HIEE"-
AN £ (B33 42 WL A R AR B 4917,482,0008
T (ZE—F  E) UREBAREE 27 i#
HERE-SEEBZHERE -
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29. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29, Zx 2\ Bl Bt 7& ik SR 5% 12 44
POSITION AND RESERVES

Company’s Statement of Financial ARPA B IR R &R
Position
At 31st December, 2015 R-FE—hAFF+—_HA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FExT F&ET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI S MR - -
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR 2R E 1,780 1,790
1,780 1,790
Current Assets REBEE
Held-for-trading investments SERE 262,166 —
Other receivables and prepayments ﬁﬁﬂ)’gﬂkﬁﬁ &?EH 10,852 317
Amounts due from subsidiaries UL FT /B A 288,095 446,924
Cash and bank balances fﬁi&fﬁﬁ ﬁ% 160,785 139,593
721,898 586,834
Current Liabilities REBEE
Accruals TEHE TR 1,398 871
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENEIE 208,962 5,113
210,360 5,984
Net Current Assets RBEERE 511,538 580,850
Total Assets less Current Liabilities ZEERBABERS 513,318 582,640
Capital and Reserves ERERE
Share capital % 7 23 442,244 442 244
Reserves {1 71,074 140,396
Total Equity 48 R 2 513,318 582,640
The Company'’s statement of financial position was RRABZMBRARER=ZZ—RF=H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of TN\BEEZRMAEWEETE AT
Directors on 18th March, 2016 and are signed on its FNEEREKRESE
behalf by:
Ge Peijian Albert Tong
B B7E
Chairman Director
E-4 o

y RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || [S £ @5 AT)
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29. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29. X AR EMR R R R EE o)
POSITION AND RESERVES (continuea)

Movement in the Company’s reserves EARZ@EEZE
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BX
1% 47 35 (B R B 1B RBEF st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FTEx TERT TER FET
THE COMPANY b N
Balance at 1st January, 2014 RZZ—NF—A—B#&H% 307,108 4,709 191,495 503,312
Dividend paid IR AR & = = (52,171) (52,171)
Profit for the year FERF - - 1,072 1,072
Transfer upon abolition of par RBEE CRAEH)D
value under the Hong Kong (55622% ) BEBr Bk 1D
Companies Ordinance H B R %
(Cap. 622) (307,108) (4,709) - (311,817)
Balance at 31st December, 2014 R-Z—NF
+tZA=+—B##% - = 140,396 140,396
Dividend paid RSB - - (52,171) (52,171)
Loss for the year FEBE - = (17,151) (17,151)

Balance at 31st December, 2015 R=-Z—&1 &

TZA=+-—-R#&#H - - 71,074 71,074
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had R EBMR ARRIHE A9 IKH
distributable reserves of approximately HK$71,074,000 #H 471,074,000 C (ZF — W& :
(2014: HK$140,396,000). 140,396,000/ 7T ) °
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Schedule of Principal Properties

F2IMERX

At 31st December, 2015 R=—Z—HF+-_HA=1+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEBEFERZME

F— P T AL R -
F TR T ARG R -
ity TFRGHIAL R

R 7 E18F 245K EfiL

* Excluding carparks.

NEREELL

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED || SO Sk BB RR A )

Investment property REYWE
Approximate Estimated
Gross gross Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description Lot number site area floor area Use term interest  completion  completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
i BRRER AEEZ fiat
#15 BRI BEE & i} HAFH B 2B B B SR A 8
(FFK) (FF7K)
Nossa Senhora Do Carmo, S.J., Taipa, 8869 and 5,255 20,500  Residential Freehold 60%  Vacantland  Pending for
Macau 10032 review
RPE ST k(T 88691 5,255 20,500 2 KAFE 60% EEIR BRHER
10032
Properties held for sale SEME
Approximate
gross floor Lease Group’s
Description Lot number area (Sq.m.) Use term interest
BHREEER AEEZ
B3 R R (FF7K) B# HAOFH i
Carparks, Lot 1 and 9,806 Carpark Long term 93.53%
Phase Il, Tomson Beautiful Space, Lot 3, 17 Jiefang,
No. 56-156, Lane 50, Zhangjiang
Guang Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
HE EEERERISNRER BRMERI=NERER 9,806 B =3t 93.53%
BERAE /B HK50F562 1565 178351 £ k3K
BERE_HEN
Shop A on G/F and Basement of Block 1, 10258 1,875* Commercial Freehold 60%
Shop A on G/F and Basement and
Shop F and G on G/F of Block 2 and
Carparks nos. 18-24 on Basement,
Edificio Tao Un,
Caminho da Povoacao de Cheok Ka,
Taipa, Macau
RPEE M iF ERITHENE 10258 1,875* EES KAKRE 60%



Schedule of Principal Properties
EMERR

At 31st December, 2015 R=—ZE—HF+-_HA=1+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE i A A=Y =) 3
Properties under development BEARYIE
Approximate Estimated
Gross gross Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description Lot number site area floor area term interest Use completion completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
wE  HNAEE KEEZ fhit
# wRES AER [ HOFH i BE AR THAH
(FHK) (FHK)
Phase Il Lot 1, 15,335 27,603 Medium to 37% Commercial Under planning Note
Shanghai Chuan Qi, 27 Jigfang, long term
No. 225, Chen Hui Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong
Shanghai, the PRC New Area
E HEBRAE BRAE 15,335 27603 FHERE 37% AE  RE it
FIEHEER RIEHRER
RIB 52055 ENE
LEEF -4
Land situated at Lot P1-P3, 96,682 156,900 Long term 37% Residential and Superstructure was 4th Quarter of
Lot P1-P3, 0002, 0002, 0013, commercial completed, overall 2016
0013, 2002 Jiefang, 2002 Jiefang, outdoor construction is
Nangiao, Nangiao, in progress
Fengxian District, Fengxian
Shanghai, the PRC District
hE LS EEEMEHA ZERMEA 96,682 156,900 =2 7% HEREF  IRABCHE EEG It
0002 + 0013 + 2002535 0002 0013+ BEEMET FMEE
P1-P3Rit 2002654

P1-P3Rit

Note: The development plans are still under review, the completion time Wit BEFEDERN T BEEEBET LY

for this property project cannot be estimated at this stage. TE B SeR 2 e
Properties held for sale HEWE
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) Lease term interest Use
BRAEREER AEEZ
B3 R R (FFK) HAFH i Bz
Carparks, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 71,518 Long term 37% Carpark
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
Lane 825-828, Chen Hui Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
HE LEFRMERIGHEER HRATE 71,518 =331 37% Bfi
RIER25-828F KIL 7 2 R B E (L RISFHRER
el
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FRMER

At 31st December, 2015 R=—Z—HF+-_HA=1+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

BENRFEZYE o)

Investment properties = E3
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) Lease term interest Use
BHRBEER AEEZ
#15 R RS (FFK) HAFH i B#
Phase |, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
HE LEFRMERISHRER BRAE 14,517 ] 37% EES
EREEORFIMEFE—H FIsHRER
26155 1/26x
Phase Il, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
HE LEFRMERISHRER BRAE 82,457 ] 37% EES
EREEORFIMEFE - FIsHRER
26155 1/26x
Phase |, Shanghai Chuan Qi, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 635 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
HE LEFRMERISHRER BRAE 26,492 ] 37% G
ZK #6359 LaET 8 FIsHRER
26174 1/6.x
Phase Il B, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 29,372 Long term 37% Residential
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 68, 69, 72, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 828, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
HE DEFRMERIGHEER HRAE 29,372 = 37% e
RIEB28768 69 * 72 RImEHREE
KLzRESE=HBR 2TEINE
Phase IV Commercial, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 6,366 Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Hi-Tech Park,
Huo Xiang Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
HE FSERNER LA RER BRI 6,366 w H 37% GES
E5¥2387 1885 FRIRNREER
RLHRRENHAHE 2TEINE
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PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Investment properties (continuea)

Schedule of Principal Properties

REWME )

Approximate

FRMER

At 31st December, 2015 W=_Z—HF+-_H=+—H

BENRBEEZYWE»)

gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sg.m.) Lease term interest Use
BARBEER AEEZ
#15 it B A 55 (FFK) HAFH Bz R#
Phase IV, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 36,049 Long term 37% Residential
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Hi-Tech Park,
Huo Xiang Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
HE FERRMERISHEER BRAE 36,049 =4 37% e
EA 123871885 RIEMRER
RILi% 5 E TEINE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFRTF 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

Year Ended 31st December
BE+-A=t—-ALEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
g% —E_f 2= —R-QNFE CZB-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THL T THL T T
Gross proceeds from operations BEWmEE 103,228 245,377 146,127 352,815 401,178
Profit before taxation R A& A 145,983 323,296 310,433 212,363 169,127
Taxation BE (6,949) (43,858) (30,523) (19,167) 5,463
Profit for the year FERT 139,034 279,438 279,910 193,196 174,590
Attributable to: BT :
Owners of the Company AREERFBEA 138,669 279,171 279,608 192,578 174,126
Non-controlling interests FERRF 365 267 302 618 464
139,034 279,438 279,910 193,196 174,590
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 4= A B 4R S 2
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
R+=-A=+-H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
~F——% %% ZF-=F ZFT-QmF -B-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THT TET THT THT TR
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERE 942 9,128 9,023 7,703 7,385
Investment property RayE 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate N AN E 681,428 896,832 994,724 928 564 859,425
Deferred tax assets BRFIBEE 16,744 16,884 17,385 16,973 16,245
Available-for-sale investments Ak ERE 312,381 378,884 413 644 338,910 334,880
Net current assets REEEFE 533,516 598,645 767,760 940,746 1,043,340
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 1,573,574 1,928,936 2,231,099 2,261,459 2,289,838
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Bz A A B/ # % 1,536,830 1,855,876 2,148,791 2,183,267 2,232,101
Non-controlling interests FEE R AR R 19,744 20,174 21,071 21,183 10,681
1,656,574 1,876,050 2,169,862 2,204,450 2,242,782
Non-current liability ERBAEE 17,000 52,886 61,237 57,000 47056
1,573,574 1,928,936 2,231,099 2,261,459 2,289,838
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